
 
 

     
 
 
 
 

 
Advanced Meeting Package 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
Thursday 

November 6, 2025 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Location: 

Grand Haven Room 
Grand Haven Village Center 

2001 Waterside Pkwy, 
Palm Coast, FL 32137 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval, or adoption. 

 



Grand Haven 
Community Development District 
 

  
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 
321-263-0132  

 
 

 
Board of Supervisors  
Grand Haven Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Grand Haven Community Development 
District is scheduled for Thursday, November 6, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. at the Grand Haven Room, at 
the Grand Haven Village Center, located at 2001 Waterside Parkway, Palm Coast, Florida 32137. 
 
An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 X-193 or 
dmcinnes@vestapropertyservices.com . We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

David McInnes 
David McInnes 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dmcinnes@vestapropertyservices.com


Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Community Development District 

Meeting Date: Thursday, November 6, 
2025 

Ways to Follow 
Meeting: 

Zoom – Listen 
Only 

Time: 9:00 AM Call-in Number: +1 (929) 205-6099 
Location: Grand Haven Room, at the 

Grand Haven Village 
Center, located at 2001 
Waterside Parkway, Palm 
Coast, Florida 32137 

Meeting ID: 
Zoom Link: 
 

705 571 4830# 
Zoom Link 

 

Agenda 

I. Call to Order/ Roll Call  
II. Pledge of Allegiance  
III. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda and non-agenda items)   
 

IV. Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) Exhibit 1 
Pg. 6 

V. Staff Reports  
A. District Engineer: David Sowell  
B. Amenity Manager: John Lucansky Exhibit 2 

Pgs. 8-10 
C. Operations Manager: Barry Kloptosky  

1. Presentation of Capital Project Plan Tracker Exhibit 3 
Pgs. 12-13 

2. Monthly Report Exhibit 4 
Pgs. 15-16 

D. District Counsel: Scott Clark – To Be Distributed Exhibit 5 
E. District Manager: David McInnes  

1. Meeting Matrix Exhibit 6 
Pgs. 19-22  

2. Action Item Report Exhibit 7 
Pgs. 24-28 

3. Proposed FY 2026 Workshop Dates Exhibit 8 
Pg. 30 

  

https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/7055714830?pwd=dUFTN091cjVHZzluYUN0blEwUUYydz09


Page 2 of 2 
 

VI. Consent Agenda Items  
A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors Workshop Meeting Held September 4, 2025 
Exhibit 9 
Pgs. 32-36 

B. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors Regular Meeting Held October 16, 2025 – To Be 
Distributed 

Exhibit 10 

VII. Business Items  
A. Consideration of Amenity Management RFP Exhibit 11 

Pgs. 39-149 
B. Consideration of Amenity Management Contract Amendment – 

To Be Distributed 
Exhibit 12 

VIII. Discussion Topics  
A. 10-Yr. Plan Updates – District Manager  
B. Parking Recommendations – District Staff & Amenity Manager  
C. Update on Escalante Discussions – Dr. Merrill  
D. City of Palm Coast E-Bike Regulation Ordinance – Dr. Merrill Exhibit 13 

Pgs. 152-154 
E. Updated Capital Project Tracker – Supervisor Chism – To Be 

Distributed 
Exhibit 14 

F. Pending Supervisor Led Projects  
IX. Supervisors’ Requests  
X. Action Items Summary  
XI. Meeting Matrix Summary  
XII. Off-Site Tour: Tour of Tract K to Gain a Better Understanding of 

Property Line Issues* 
Exhibit 15 

Pg. 157 
XIII. Adjournment  

 

*During this portion of the agenda, Supervisors will travel to Tract K (adjacent to the golf course 
clubhouse) to review property conditions there.  Additional conversation and interaction between 
Supervisors will occur at that location and is part of the noticed meeting. 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



FIRST INSERTION
GRAND HAVEN COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

NOTICE OF BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS REGULAR 

MEETING    
Notice is hereby given that a regular 

meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 
Grand Haven Community Development 
District (the “District”) will be held on 
Thursday, November 6, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 
at the Grand Haven Village Center, Grand 
Haven Room, 2001 Waterside Parkway, 
Palm Coast, Florida 32137.  The purpose 
of the meeting is to discuss any topics pre-
sented to the board for consideration.

Copies of the agenda may be obtained 
from the District Manager, Vesta District 
Services, 250 International Parkway, Suite 
208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746, Telephone 
(321) 263-0132, Ext. 193.  

The meeting is open to the public and 
will be conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of Florida law for community 
development districts.  The meeting may 
be continued in progress without addi-
tional notice to a date, time, and place to 
be specified on the record at the meeting.  
There may be occasions when Staff and/
or Supervisors may participate by speaker 
telephone.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations to participate in 
the meeting is asked to advise the District 
Manager’s office at least forty-eight (48) 
hours before the meeting by contacting the 
District Manager at (321) 263-0132, Ext. 
193.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, 
please contact the Florida Relay Service at 
711, for assistance in contacting the District 
Manager’s office. 

A person who decides to appeal any deci-
sion made at the meeting, with respect to 
any matter considered at the meeting, is 
advised that a record of the proceedings 
is needed and that accordingly, the person 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record 
of the proceedings is made, including the 
testimony and evidence upon which the ap-
peal is to be based.
Grand Haven 
Community Development District
David McInnes, District Manager
(321) 263-0132, Ext. 193
Oct. 30                                           25-00408F         



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



1 
 

  

Monthly Amenity Update 

Date of report   10-29-2025                  Submitted by: John Lucansky 

 
 
Café:  

•  Novembers nightly specials 
o Veterans’ dinner special discount 
o Thanksgiving night scheduled for the 13th  
o Wine tastings scheduled for the 17th and 24th  

 White and red wines on separate nights 
• Trivia, Bingo, and Prime Rib nights continue to be very well 

attended 
 

Amenities: 
 

• Pickleball on clay day is scheduled for Nov. 8th and 9th 11:00-
2:00  

• Pool volleyball is held on the first and third Monday of each 
month. 

o Times slots will be divided by levels of play 
 Ex: 5-6pm family play, 6-7pm couples play, and 

7-8pm advanced play 
o All residents are welcome to attend  

 
 
Events: 

• Community tennis dinner to be held on Thursday 30th 
• Bingo was held Oct. 28 with 97 residents attending.  100 max 

capacity 
• Line and ballroom dancing continues to be very popular  

o Each offered once a month 



2 
 

• Karaoke scheduled for Saturday 15th 
 

• Midnight at the Masquerade Night scheduled for Nov. 8th 
5:00-8:00pm 

o Limited to 80 residents. 70 signed up as of now 
o A fully immersive dinner show 

 
• Trunk or Treat scheduled for Halloween evening for 4-7pm 

in south parking lot 
o 8 of 24 spots have been reserved 
o Mr. Softy ice cream will be at the Village Center round 

about and face painting available for the children 
o Update will be given at meeting 

 
 

 
Tiki Hut 

• Tiki hut will remain open on Sundays, 11am-7pm 
o Weather permitting 

 
 
 
Tennis Courts: 
 

• Clay will be added to courts as needed 
o Courts 1,and 2 completed 
o Other courts will be prioritized by clay need 

• New nets were installed on courts 5 & 6.  
• Some windscreens are showing tearing and dry rot and will 

need replaced soon 
 

Bocce: 

• Bocce-Fall league started September 3rd 
o Over 170 signed up as of now, 14 teams 
o Play is held on Wednesdays and Thursdays 3-8pm 

 
 



3 
 

 
Amenities quality checks and reporting: 

• We continue to monitor and check all amenities.  

• We use QR codes so the facilitators must physically go to the 

amenities (restrooms, tennis courts, etc…) scan the code and 

enter all required information.  Below are some examples of the 

reports. 

• The facilitators also have a QR code for any issues/repairs that 

need to be reported to the CDD office-I checked these daily and 

forward them to CDD office staff.  This ensures no delays in 

reporting and repairs. 

 

 

 

 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



Line Description Budgeted Cost Variance (+/-) Invoiced Amount Final Cost Comments/Notes Completed
1 Gate & Gate Operator - Replacement $13,401
2 Concrete Curb and Gutter Replacement $60,000 $3,741 In progress by CDD staff
3 Concrete Replacement $20,000 $916 In progress by CDD staff
4 Repairs Prior to Roadwork $75,000
5 Firewise Projects $57,758 $9,600 In progress under the direction of the District Horticulturist
6 Road Repairs $33,502
7 Camera and DVR Replacement $12,061
8 Storm Water Pipe Repairs & Replacements $200,000
9 Pond Bank Erosion Issues $39,344

10 Tiki Hut Furniture $5,500 Evaluating options and requesting quotes from vendors
11 Drinking Fountain, Outdoor - Clubhouse ((CAC)) $1,801 Contacted prior vendor for updated quote
12 Irrigation Pump/Motor, 50 Hp $56,861
13 Lake Aerator (Annual) $40,228
14 Landscape Enhancements-Annual Reinvestment $59,703
15 Monument and Mailbox Replacements $25,000
16 Trellis, PT Wood - Clubhouse (CAC) $10,775
17 Street Signs and Poles, Replacement $10,000 Replacement list being drafted by CDD field staff
18 Shelter Fabric, Recover - (VC) Tennis Court $1,493
19 Roadway $145,600
20 Pavers, Interlocking - Front St Esplanade Entrances (3 total) $60,001
21 Meter/Breaker Box Repair & Replacement $23,000
22 Tree Removal $84,000
23 Pergola Reconstruction $171,592 $17,159 Contractor proceeding with engineering and design phase

24 Callboxes
North, South, & Crossings gates complete. Wild Oaks scheduled 
for 11/4/25.

25 Curb/Gutter Replacement (Cline) Estimated completion date 11/10/25
26
27 Totals: $1,035,027 $171,592 $31,417 $0

GRAND HAVEN
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FY2025/2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROJECT TRACKER
10/29/2025



Line
Capital / 

O&M Project Title Budget Amt Contr
 Date

Sched Start 
Date

Act Start 
Date

Sched Comp 
Date Cur % Comp Amt Paid to 

Date
Act Com 

Date
Act

 Final Cost Budget Var Expl of Var

1 C Curb Repairs Prior to Roadwork
$75,000

2 C
Stormwater Pipe Repairs & 

Replacements $200,000

3 C Pond Bank Erosion Issues
$39,344

4 C Irrigation Pump/Motor
$56,861

5 C Lake Aerator (Annual)
$40,228

6 C
Refurbishment Allowance - 

Monument and Mailbox $25,000

7 C Road Paving
$145,600

8 C
Pavers, Interlocking - Front 

Street Esplanade Entrances $60,001

9 C Tree Removal
$84,000

10 O&M Pergola Reconstruction
$171,592 8/20/25 $17,159

11 C
Meter/Breaker Box 

Replacement $23,000

12

Submitted on: 10/29/2025

CDD
Project Status Report

Prepared by: Vanessa Stepniak, Operations Supervisor



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



 

Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

 

Operations Manager’s Report – For the Thursday November 6th, 2025, Board Meeting 

(This Report Was Submitted for The Agenda On 10/29/2025) 
 

o VILLAGE CENTER PERGOLA 

 The pergola contract has been executed. 

 The deposit has been invoiced and paid. 

 The contractor has started the design phase of the project. 

 The contractor has provided a preliminary draft of the pergola design, and the Board has 

approved the preliminary draft.  

 The contractor has been notified of the draft approval and is proceeding with the 

engineering and design phase of the projects. 

 

o ALTERNATE EXIT IN WILD OAKS FOR EMERGENCY PURPOSES 

 The Board approved surveying two areas along the ponds near the entrance of Wild 

Oaks. 

 Surveys have been completed. 

 Florida Forestry Service was onsite 10/13/2025 and did an evaluation. We are waiting 

for a final report from them. 

 

o CURB/GUTTER REPAIR  

 The proposal for the next round of repairs was approved by the Board at the September 

Regular Meeting. 

 The contract has been fully executed, and the work began on DATE. 



Barry Kloptosky • Operations Manager 
Grand Haven CDD 
2 N. Village Pkwy 

Palm Coast FL. 32137 
P: 386-447-1888 • F: 386-447-1131 

 

 

o CALLBOX REPLACEMENT 

 The new kiosk installations have been completed at the North Gate, South Gate, and 

Crossings Gate. 

 The kiosk installation at the Wild Oaks Gate was postponed because unanticipated 

challenges at the other gate locations required more time than expected. 

  The contractor’s schedule did not allow sufficient availability to complete the Wild 

Oaks installation to CDD standards.  

 We asked them to return when they could dedicate the appropriate time to the 

project and they are scheduled to be onsite to complete the Wild Oaks kiosk 

installation on Tuesday, November 4th, 2025 (weather permitting). 

 

 CAFÉ SOUND REDUCTION 

 Sound absorption wall panels have been installed, and resident feedback has been 

positive regarding the reduction of the sound level.  

 To help further reduce the sound level, additional sound absorption wall panels have 

been installed on the east wall in the café. 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D
ecem

ber, 2025 

   

Regular 
Meeting: 

12/4 

Staff Reports 
• 1. District Engineer 
• 2. District Counsel 
• 3. District Manager 

 
Consent Agenda Items 

• 1. Meeting Minutes 
o 1a. 11/6/2025 Regular Meeting 

• 2. Unaudited Financials October 2025 
• 3. Unaudited Financials November 2025 

 
Business Items 
 
Discussions 

• 1. 10 Year Plan Updates—District Manager 
• 2. District Management Structure—Dr. Merrill 
• 3. Pending Supervisor Led Projects 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January, 2026 

   

Regular 
Meeting: 

1/15 

Staff Reports 
• 1. District Engineer 
• 2. District Counsel 
• 3. District Manager 

 
Consent Agenda Items 

• 1. Meeting Minutes 
o 1a. 12/4/2025 Regular Meeting 

• 2. Unaudited Financials December 2025 
 
Business Items 
 
Discussions 

• 1. 10 Year Plan Updates 
• 2. Pending Supervisor Led Projects 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  
 

 

U
nscheduled Item

s 

 
 

Future Workshop Issues: 
 

• Budget Reduction Suggestion by Residents 
 

• Presentation by Amenity Manager on Future 
Amenity Ideas 
 

• Framework for Sports Professional 
 

• Bullet Point Guidelines for Residents to Follow 
Regarding Pond Bank Matters 
 

• Ability to do Word Search for Certain Documents 
(Minutes and Resolutions) 
 

Future Meeting Issues: 
 

• 10-Year Plan Presentation to Residents 
• MBS Capital Markets LLC (Bond Underwriter) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• John Lucansky to provide suggested framework 
 
• 9/19/2024 Meeting:  Louise to research and provide guidelines 

(bullet point fashion) 
 
• Vanessa and David to work on this together—will involve Celera 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GRAND HAVEN MEETING AGENDA MATRIX 
  

SUBJECT  
NOTES 

 Communications (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Ten year plan presentation—on Hold 
 

Safety and Security (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Plan for more perimeter fencing: Flagler County seeking funding 
alternatives. 10/5/2023 workshop added the matter of sound barrier 
walls; 1/4/2024 workshop: Barry provided rough estimate: 6/6 
workshop update from Supervisor Crouch. County to repair fencing 
along Colbert Lane 
 

Café’ Renovations (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Completed 
Vesta’s Participation in Café (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Underway--RFP 
Parking Lot (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • 3/20/2025: Board voted to end project 
What to do with Parcel K (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Ongoing 
Parcel next to Golf Course (Easement) (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Completed (contract with Escalante) 
Banking Oversight (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Ongoing 
Oak Tree Management (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Ongoing 
Dog Park (FY 23-FY 24 Goal) • Minimal upgrades: (10/19/2023 Meeting). Done; 3/20/2025: Survey 

approved to be done--Pending 
Review/revise employee benefit program (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) • Underway--Goal is to have work done in 5/25 or 6/25 

 
Reserve Study (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) 

 
• Done 

Pond and Tree Programs (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) 
 

• Underway 

CDD Managerial Staff (recommendations from DM, OS and OM) (FY 25-
FY 26 Goal) 
 

 

Barrier System for Feral Hogs (establish a FFG) (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) 
 

• Underway (FFG) 

Landscaping company for all of Grand Haven (discuss with Louise) (FY 25-
FY 26 Goal) 
 

 
 

Analysis of Grand Haven (Supervisor Foley) (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) 
 

• 3/6/2025: Board decided to pause this matter 

Emergency Exit for Wild Oaks (FY 25-FY 26 Goal) 
 

• Underway 

  



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



Date of Action 
Item 

Action Item Status 

 DISTRICT MANGER SECTION  
   

7/17/2025 Email check register to the Board each 
month 
 

8/14: sent 

   
8/21/2025 DM, OM, OS and Howard McGaffney to 

provide recommended guidelines for 
items listed in CRF which should be 
listed in O&M 
 

Underway 

   
 10/16/2025 Send Board invoices of any amount paid 

to date for pergola replacement 
 Done 

   
10/16/2025 Check with insurance company 

regarding electrical connections for 
pergola 
 

10/17: Email to Judd Hart 

   
10/16/2025 Send workshop dates (quarterly dates) to 

Board 
 

Done 

   
10/16/2025 Post Initial Tree Group Report to website 

 
Done 

   
XXXXXXXXXXX

XXXX 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXX 

   
 OPERATIONS 

MANAGER/OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR SECTION 

 

   
2/1/2024 OM to obtain proposal for surveying 

boundary for all of Grand Haven 
Paused 

   
4/18/2024 OM to review operational performance 

of stormwater structures 
 

Underway 

   
6/20/2024 OM to provide Board with feedback from 

employees on current benefits 
Underway 

   



7/18/2024 OS to visit 2 other CDDs each year to 
see how they operate and to speak with 
their staff regarding matters of interest 
 

 

   
7/18/2024 OM and OS review information provided 

by Grand Haven resident at a recent 
meeting regarding how the community 
of Celebration deals with minimizing 
potential sidewalk and roadway damage 
from Oak Trees 

 

   
9/5/2024 OS--Louise to contact IFAS to see if new 

treatment is available for duckweed 
(memo back to Board on findings) 
 

 

   
9/19/2024 OS--Louise to research and provide 

guidelines (bullet point fashion) for 
residents to follow around ponds. These 
will be discussed in a future workshop 
before being disseminated to residents 
 

 

9/30/2024 OM to establish replacement process for 
District Assets 
 

 

9/30/2024 OM/OS to place signage on bathroom 
doors stating “Resident Use Only” 
 

Underway 

   
11/7/2024 OS to provide suggestions to limit golf 

course users from accessing and using 
District amenities 
 

 

   
11/7/2024 OM to check outfalls in specific Wild 

Oaks area to see if pipe blockage exists 
 

 

   
1/16/2025 OM/OS to obtain from Louise plans of 

what to do with Dog Park 
 

Underway 

   
2/20/2025 Louise to start to prioritize what Oak 

Trees need to be removed 
 

Underway 



   
4/17/2025 OM to proceed with obtaining a proposal 

for emergency exit in Wild Oak 
 

 

   
4/17/2025 OM to check on stop sign at Waterside 

and Marlin 
 

 

   
7/17/2025 OM to transfer road signage to Waterside 

Parkway (for 
Waterside/Sandpiper/Marlin intersection 

 

   
8/21/2025  OM to call sound reduction expert 

regarding noise abatement possibilities 
for Waterside Café 
 

 

   
8/21/2025 OM, OS, DM and Howard McGaffney to 

provide recommended guidelines for 
items listed in CRF which should be 
listed in O&M 
 

Done 

   
9/18/2025 OS (Louise) to obtain estimates for dog park 

improvements from VerdeGo 
Underway 

   
10/16/2025 OM/OS: Provide recommendations for 

signage and communication on ponds 
allowing fishing/no fishing (for 11/6 
meeting) 
 

 

   
10/16/2025 OM/OS/Amenity Mgr.: Provide 

recommendations to address the parking 
issues recently seen (for 11/6 meeting) 
 

 

   
10/16/2025 OM/OS: Ask Pratt Guy how long City of 

Palm Coast estimates permitting review 
will take 
 

 

   
10/16/2025 OS: Send E-Blast in May. 2026 

regarding qualifying for Board seat 
during June qualifying period with 
Supervisor of Elections 

 



 
10/16/2025 OM: Check drainage pipe at entry of 

Wild Oaks (right side) to make sure it is 
functioning correctly 

 

   
10/16/2025 OS: Check internet connection at Village 

Center 
 

   
XXXXXXXXXXX

XXXX 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXX 

   
 DISTRICT ENGINEER SECTION  
   

XXXXXXXXXXX
XXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXX 

   
 BOARD SECTION  
   

3/21/2024 Dr. Merrill (in conjunction with DC when 
needed) to see about future plans for 
Escalante 
 

Underway 

9/18/2025 Supervisor Chism to provide new format for 
capital tracker for Board consideration 

 

   
10/16/2025 Supervisor Chism: Meet with District 

Staff on new project tracker 
 

 

   
10/16/2025 Supervisor Foley: Investigate the 

Transition Fee issue more fully 
 

 

   
XXXXXXXXXXX

XXXX 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXX 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXX 

   
 DISTRICT COUNSEL SECTION  
   

1/19/2023 DC to work with City of Palm Coast to 
determine current storm clean up protocol 
and to provide a new MOU if possible 

Underway 

   
4/18/2024 DC to review agreements with Escalante 

versus current operational processes 
 

Underway 

   
8/1/2024 DC to write a letter to Escalante 

regarding the District’s desire that they 
On hold 



enhance their pond banks maintenance 
by abiding by Best Management 
Practices and to list in the letter 
examples that Louise is to provide of 
things she has done (and costs incurred) 
due to the lack of following BMPs. 
 

   
      

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



Dates Approved for FY 26 Regular Board Meetings: 

• October 16, 2025 
• November 6, 2025 
• December 4, 2025 
• January 15, 2026 
• February 19, 2026 
• March 19, 2026 
• April 16, 2026 
• May 22, 2026 
• June 18, 2026 
• July 16, 2026 

 

Dates Approved for FY 26 Workshops: 

• February 5, 2026 
• March 5, 2026 
• May 7, 2026 
• June 4, 2026 
• August 6, 2026 
• September 3, 2026 

 

Revised Dates Proposed for FY Workshops: 

• February 5, 2026 
• May 7, 2026 
• June 4, 2026 
• September 3, 2026 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

GRAND HAVEN 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Workshop Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Grand Haven Community Development 4 
District was held on Thursday, September 4, 2025 at 9:08 a.m. at the Grand Haven Room, in the Grand 5 
Haven Village Center, located at 2001 Waterside Parkway, Palm Coast, Florida 32137. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Call to Order/Roll Call 7 

Mr. McInnes called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Dr. Merrill Stass-Isern Board Supervisor, Chairwoman 10 
Nancy Crouch Board Supervisor, Vice Chairwoman 11 
Kevin Foley Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
John Chism Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Steve Brazen Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also present were: 15 

David McInnes District Manager, Vesta District Services 16 
Jay King President, Vesta Property Services 17 
Jason Davidson Regional General Manager, Vesta Property Services 18 
Barry Kloptosky Operations Manager 19 
Vanessa Stepniak Operations Supervisor 20 
John Lucansky Amenity Manager 21 
Louise Leister District Horticulturist 22 
Bill Delaney Resident 23 
Dr. Steve Davidson Resident 24 
 25 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the September 4, 2025 Grand Haven 26 
CDD Board of Supervisors Workshop Meeting. 27 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Pledge of Allegiance 28 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 29 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited up to 3 minutes per individual for 30 
agenda items)  31 

Mr. Delaney gave comments regarding Wild Oaks evacuation planning, the feasibility of a 32 
secondary exit, and first responders’ critical role in emergencies. At the Board’s request, Dr. 33 
Davidson provided an overview of his time leading a project to construct a secondary exit out of 34 
The Crossings as part of the Community Emergency Response Team, as well as more recent 35 
discussions with the wildfire mitigation specialist to look at Wild Oaks and the need for input from 36 
the Forest Service. Mr. Kloptosky additionally provided information on the District Engineer’s 37 
plans with preparing a review of completed surveys and determining the feasibility of the exits. 38 
The Board additionally discussed structuring the project to include road resurfacing in a broader 39 
scope or longer timeframe, noting some staff observations that larger projects could generate more 40 
bid interest. 41 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Exhibit 1: Presentation of Proof of Publication(s)  42 

 43 

 44 



Grand Haven CDD September 4, 2025 

Workshop Meeting Page 2 of 5 

 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Presentations 45 

A. Exhibit 2: Raised Sidewalks Caused by Oak Trees Plan – Louise Leister 46 

Ms. Leister presented a slideshow with information sourced from Advanced Tree Care Inc., 47 
regarding options for addressing the tree roots under sidewalks. Ms. Leister highlighted types of 48 
damage caused by growing roots, and noted that methods of addressing lifted sidewalk slabs from 49 
tree root flares included: 50 

• shaving down the slab, which tended to be relatively inexpensive but could only be done 51 
to a slab a certain number of times 52 

• laying down asphalt to level the sidewalk from one slab to the next to even out the trip 53 
hazard, though this was a less aesthetically pleasing approach 54 

• a process called “slab jacking” which involved injecting concrete under an adjacent slab to 55 
match the level, though this did not address the growing root flare and was a somewhat 56 
uncommon method 57 

• rebuilding the sidewalk to meander around the problem root plate area, which could only 58 
be done if there was sufficient space to do so; Ms. Leister noted that the recommended 59 
leeway was three times the diameter of the nearby tree 60 

• excavating underneath the offending roots to lower them and allow for space for roots to 61 
expand downward, which had strong success rates particularly for older historic trees but 62 
required specialized equipment such as air spades and tended to be expensive 63 

• bridging over the roots, which would likely create a rise in the sidewalk above the roots 64 
and may have ADA concerns 65 

• placing sidewalk over a geo grid mesh base or gravel, which was based on recent research 66 
on root growth interactions with gravel but may cause the sidewalk to be higher than the 67 
original slab heights 68 

• installing root barriers, which Ms. Leister commented that she personally had not seen 69 
much success with 70 

• root inhibitor spray treatment which Ms. Leister suggested only generally worked for 71 
young trees and had less effect as trees mature and roots continue to grow 72 

• crown pruning, which is a highly expensive reduction in the tree crown by a certified 73 
arborist to slow down growth of the root system of young trees, but did not solve for 74 
existing root and sidewalk issues  75 

Dr. Merrill noted that the slideshow would be posted on the CDD website following the meeting. 76 
Dr. Merrill recommended that the work group on Oak Trees consider reforestation as an approach, 77 
where another tree was planted for every tree removed within CDD property, and a replacement 78 
tree would be offered for a different location to the homeowner. The Board expressed support for 79 
the reforestation recommendation, and Ms. Leister provided input on diverse tree species that could 80 
be established in the CDD’s natural areas. Ms. Leister indicated that it was important to frame the 81 
tree management initiative around improving the Grand Haven community and the environment, 82 
rather than simple tree removal. Additional discussion ensued regarding tree maintenance practices 83 
and preserving the tree canopies that were an aesthetic signature and viewed positively by members 84 
of the community. 85 

 86 

 87 



Grand Haven CDD September 4, 2025 

Workshop Meeting Page 3 of 5 

 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Discussion Topics 88 

A. Employee Compensation & Bonus Structure 89 

Dr. Merrill noted that the Fact-Finding Group had drawn from various local governments and the 90 
benefits that they offered to employees, and presented a new employee performance review format 91 
that they had developed. Dr. Merrill noted an emphasis on merit-based evaluations in the questions 92 
provided, and that the group had not made a recommendation on the specific increase in salary. Mr. 93 
McInnes added that providing recommendations was outside of the scope of what a Fact-Finding 94 
Group was permitted to do, and that any recommendations at this point in the agenda were from 95 
Dr. Merrill and based on information provided by the group. 96 

Dr. Merrill also noted PTO structures at four other organizations and outlined patterns that the 97 
group had noticed, including shorter windows before employees could begin accruing time off. Dr. 98 
Merrill recommended for Grand Haven to allow for carryover of unused PTO across years, up to a 99 
maximum of 3 days, and for the total amount of PTO that could be saved to be set to a 25 day limit. 100 

Mr. Chism commented on the personnel annual performance review structure, observing that under 101 
the Operations Management’s purview, all employees had received 100% evaluations resulting in 102 
maximum raises and bonuses, which he believed to not be statistically possible against the standard 103 
curve of outcomes, and may indicate some problems with the reviews. Mr. Foley noted that the 104 
staff on payroll at Grand Haven was a fairly small size, and cautioned that some of the corporate 105 
patterns and practices being highlighted may not be as applicable in this setting. Dr. Merrill 106 
commented on the importance of the benefits package in addressing employee retention issues and 107 
the value of in-house work as an alternative to contractor hiring. Additional discussion ensued 108 
regarding unpaid time off, FMLA leave eligibility, and previous employees’ stated reasons for 109 
leaving. 110 

B. Exhibit 3: Legal Requirements for When a Request for Proposals (RFP) is Required 111 

Mr. McInnes presented the memorandum from District Counsel regarding the RFP process and 112 
differentiating this from simple solicitation of bids. Mr. McInnes noted that historically the CDD 113 
had always employed the RFP process for road construction projects, and that any bidders were 114 
required to attend a pre-bid meeting which involved detailed documentation as part of the RFP 115 
package. Mr. McInnes also emphasized the importance of RFP scoring weights in evaluating bids. 116 
Mr. McInnes also explained that RFQ processes were distinct from RFPs, and typically these were 117 
done for professional services such as engineering for the District. Mr. McInnes noted that RFQs 118 
did not evaluate for pricing when selecting and awarding agreements, and that pricing was 119 
negotiated with whichever firm had been evaluated the highest. 120 

Mr. McInnes explained that the pricing threshold for triggering the RFP process for maintenance 121 
matters was $195,000, and for contracts for construction or improvement in public buildings, 122 
structures, or other works the threshold was at $300,000. Mr. McInnes noted that some Districts 123 
opted to have more stringent RFP thresholds as part of their own rules of procedure, but the 124 
$195,000/$300,000 thresholds were state-required. 125 

Dr. Merrill recommended that the Board review the RFP that had been developed by District 126 
Counsel for Amenity and Café Management, as this would be discussed at the next regular meeting. 127 
Mr. McInnes stated that he would distribute the RFP out to the Board following the workshop 128 
meeting.  129 

 130 

 131 

 132 



Grand Haven CDD September 4, 2025 

Workshop Meeting Page 4 of 5 

 
C. 10-Year Plan Formatting 133 

Mr. McInnes presented an update on the format of the 10-year plan, following a suggestion to have 134 
staff provide ideas for items that could be removed from the Capital Reserve Plan. Mr. McInnes 135 
noted that Mr. McGaffney had provided a first pass of the plan for editing down, noting that 136 
allowances in the plan, which were flat fees for known costs, had been moved over. Mr. McInnes 137 
noted that a general rule on the accounting side was that any expenses greater than $5,000 should 138 
be capital projects, but there were some items above this threshold that could be argued as 139 
community operations and maintenance expenses. Mr. McInnes noted the need for additional input 140 
from the Operations Manager and Operations Supervisor before moving forward. 141 

D. Pending Supervisor Led Projects 142 

Ms. Crouch provided an update on the Fact-Finding Group for Communications, noting that work 143 
was being done on developing a short questionnaire to the community on their preferences for 144 
communications channels.  145 

Dr. Merrill inquired about the results of the survey of the dog park area. Mr. Kloptosky stated that 146 
he had not yet discussed the survey results with the District Engineer, and could confer with him 147 
and inform him of the Board’s request to hold off on the Wild Oaks exit review. Dr. Merrill also 148 
discussed the idea of moving the workshop meeting schedule from a monthly to a quarterly basis, 149 
and to conduct the meeting without the District Manager needing to attend, as a cost-saving 150 
measure. In response to Board questions on additional types of meetings, Mr. McInnes advised that 151 
Florida law allowed for special meetings and emergency meetings to take place, explaining that 152 
special meetings were advertised seven days in advance, and that emergency meetings were held 153 
with a smaller window and any actions therein would need to be ratified at the subsequent regular 154 
meeting. Mr. McInnes recommended checking with District Counsel regarding District Manager 155 
attendance requirements at workshop meetings, as well as the legal specifics around opting to 156 
continue or recess meetings to a later date. 157 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited up to 3 minutes per individual for 158 
agenda items)  159 

There were no comments from the audience. 160 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Tour of Work Shed 161 

(The Board recessed the workshop meeting at 11:48 a.m. and reconvened at 12:08 p.m. at the 162 
Work Shed site for a tour.) 163 

The Board toured the work shed area. 164 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: September 18 at 9:00 AM 165 

Dr. Merrill, Mr. Chism, and Mr. Brazen stated that they could attend the next meeting in person, 166 
which would constitute a quorum. Ms. Crouch stated that she anticipated attending the next meeting 167 
remotely. Mr. Foley stated that he would not be able to attend the next meeting. 168 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Action Items Review 169 

Mr. McInnes noted the following action items: 170 

• The District Manager will notify the District Engineer to stop further work on the emergency 171 
exit review for Wild Oaks, pending an evaluation from the Florida Forestry Service. 172 

• The District Manager will send Mr. Chism annual employee evaluations for the last six months. 173 
• The District Manager will upload the District Horticulturist’s slideshow presentation on tree 174 

maintenance options to the CDD website. 175 



Grand Haven CDD September 4, 2025 

Workshop Meeting Page 5 of 5 

 
• The District Manager will send the RFP for Amenity and Café Management to the Board of 176 

Supervisors. 177 
• The District Manager will inquire with District Counsel regarding specifics on communications 178 

on the NextDoor app. 179 
• The District Manager will add the employee performance review, PTO and other leave policies 180 

to the next meeting agenda for Board approval. 181 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 182 

The Board adjourned the meeting, at 12:35 p.m., for the Grand Haven Community Development 183 
District. 184 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 185 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 186 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 187 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 188 
meeting held on November 6, 2025. 189 

 190 

 191 

 192 

Signature  Signature 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 193 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 



245 Riverside Ave #300 | Jacksonville, FL 32202 | 904-355-1831

Vesta Property Services, Inc.
Your Community, Our Commitment

Proposal for Continuing Partnership 
with Vesta Property Services

Grand Haven CDD



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cover Letter                                                              
Scope of Work and Our Experience                                     

Food and Beverage Management
General Management
Community Lifestyle
Community Programming
Website
Resident Engagement 
Quality Assurance
Resident Experience (Quotes)

Key Personell
References
Cost
Additional Information

3
5
6
15
17
18
20
21
22
39
51
74
78
87

A 30-YEAR TRACK RECORD WORTHY OF YOUR TRUST
FLORIDA’S COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST



September 3rd, 2025

Dear Grand Haven CDD Board of Supervisors:

I can remember the day so vividly, I had been working for Vesta for 12 years at Bartram
Springs and received a call from Jay King that contained news that I would have the
opportunity to work at Grand Haven. I couldn’t wait to get here. I had been to Grand
Haven a couple times to get exposure as we worked to make sure it would be a good fit
for everyone. I knew it was a well-manicured upscale community with outstanding
amenities, two heated pools, 2 spas, 4 pickleball courts, 7 Clay tennis courts, 2 bocce, 3
croquet courts and a small café.

Immediately the café got my attention; I love being around people and I love food so this
was the chance to do something really special. I gave thought about how I could assist in
improving the café into one of the best cafés at any community we manage. Once at the
helm, I got to work immediately ensuring I had the right people in the right positions. We
updated the menu and planned to hold more events. We added trivia, name that tune,
bingo, karaoke, wine tastings, additional holiday events, different daily and nightly dinner
specials, and started a pierogi night.  I am proud of how we held on to the team during
the extended café closure to both take care of them and to best ensure we retained the
experience that the residents had come to appreciate. Once we reopened, we expanded
the food and beverage menus even more without raising prices.

I have found my dream job. Grand Haven is a perfect fit for my work ethic, skills and
personality.  It allows me to welcome residents to the café, get to know them and their
families even more, while serving great food and providing excellent customer service. I
love seeing how happy families at the end of their meal. Along with the oversight of the
café, I keep a tight watch on maintaining our other amenities.  Hard work while having fun
has always helped to get me through my day to day process.  I enjoy my job to the fullest.

I’m very grateful for the opportunity to be part of Grand Haven. I’m thankful for the staff
that we have and also working alongside with the great team that Barry has. The
facilitators take pride in all the amenities. Brittani and Heidi look after all the office needs,
engaging residents, running the website, and act as group liaisons between all the
groups and classes. Tiffani, our café manager, and Stephen our Chef and all the cooks
take great pride in all the meals they prepare. 

I’m especially proud of how well staff maintains the tennis courts, pools and spas, rental
rooms and multiple restrooms throughout the property. Whether it is grooming the courts,
balancing the chemicals in the pools or keeping the rooms and bathrooms spotless, I
have one of the hardest working teams in Vesta. As a team, we have come up with a
good procedure system with the QR codes that ensures that repair responses from
facilitators are passed onto the operational staff immediately. This system also ensures
the facilitators and café staff can maintain the amenities at the highest standards. 

Page 3



Sincerely,

John Lucansky
General Manager
Grand Haven 
Vesta Property Services
2001 Waterside Pkwy
Palm Coast, FL 32137

Our team feels like a family here at Grand Haven. Finally, I’m especially proud to be part of
the Vesta team. Jay King and Vesta have always treated me with respect and offered
their full support throughout my 16+ year tenure. They are always available 24/7
whenever I need them and I engage with them throughout the week as necessary on
staffing, HR, accounting, IT, benchmarking, general management support and
consultation as issues arise.  Thank you for giving me the chance to work at such a fine
community. It is quite an honor.

We fully understand and agree to provide the scope and positions outlined in the RFP
pages 33 - 40.  We are offering a variety of models to provide flexibility for consideration
based on the Board’s evolving vision. For the amenity portion of the scope of services we
are offering three options for consideration which are described on page 16:

1. Staffing Levels per RFP
2. Status Quo (Alternative Option A)
3. Fixed Management Fee (Alternate Option B)

For the Food and Beverage portion of the scope of services we are offering three options
for consideration which are described on page 13:

1.  5% Revenue Share (Per RFP)
2.  Status Quo (Alternative Option A)
3.  Fixed Management Fee (Alternative Option B)

We are happy to discuss and engage when appropriate on creative solutions not part of
the  RFP (CDD team succession planning, role consolidation, flexible PEO scenarios, etc.) to
help reduce costs and ensure the best possible resident experience. Although specifically
excluded from the RFP as a model we did include background information on our “Cost
Plus” approach as another potential operating model to save money and increase
transparency. We have used this successfully at five neighboring Northeast Florida CDDs.
We are prepared to discuss it as well should there be interest.

Thanks again for the opportunity to have served Grand Haven these many years and we
look forward to continuing to build on that experience and take Grand Haven into the
future if given the opportunity to partner on another contract. 

Page 4



GRAND HAVEN’S SCOPE
OF WORK AND 

OUR EXPERIENCE



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Vesta’s Food and Beverage Approach and Delivering Results at Grand Haven

Background:

The Board’s approach to the RFP following the expiration of our last contract about 4 years
ago was to remove the “profit share” requirement from the original RFP. There had historically
been an informal 50/50 profit share. The Board then reissued the RFP with a directive to
waive and reinvest the profit share to instead keep prices low and service levels high. We
serve at the pleasure of the Board and are committed to delivering on your vision, so we
have spent the last four years focused on just that.

Industry Environment and Comparative Data:

It is helpful to provide a broader sample of relevant industry data and context in order to
assess our operation at the Waterside Café and what all is possible. The National Restaurant
Association's data shows a failure rate of approximately 17% of restaurants closing in their
first year. More broadly, research suggests that the long-term failure rate is higher, with
studies reporting roughly 60% of restaurants failing within the first five years of opening.

The private club food and beverage space is even more challenging than the restaurant
industry as a whole, with a restricted customer base but high expectations on service levels
resulting in costs often exceeding revenues and thus requiring a subsidy to sustain
operations. The data and analysis come from RSM (https://rsmus.com/) which is a
consulting firm that provides aggregated data around the Food & Beverage (F&B) scope
encompassing the private club, golf course and CDD (CIRAs) related space. The following
are some key metrics to compare the Waterside Café operation against. No data set is
perfect but the most relevant rows in the tables below to our Grand Haven Operation would
be “North and Central” (most geographically relevant) and the “Southwest CIRAs” (most
relevant to CDDs). As you can see from the table, on average, COGS (“Cost of Goods Sold” or
wholesale food cost) averages 48-51% (compared to our café’s 40-42% before the café
closure), Gross Wages 70.9-74.9% (compared to our café’s 39-40% before the café closure),
which combined with other expenses result in a subsidy of 45-55.8%. Running a successful
F&B operation (high customer satisfaction and keeping expenses within revenues) is one of
the most difficult things we do in our industry.

Page 6



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Our café at Grand Haven has never required a subsidy beyond the space provided and
utilities. Our operation before the latest contract even provided a profit share back to the
CDD to offset those expenses. This is in line with how most communities view their amenities.
The CDD provides the space (tennis courts, swimming pools, meeting rooms, café, etc.) and
then the users of that space pay for the programming (tennis league and lessons, swim
teams, fitness classes/private rentals in meeting rooms and meals in the cafe). We are very
proud of our track record of operating all three of our food and beverage operations in a
profitable and sustainable way in Northeast Florida at Rivertown, Grand Haven (except
during the closure) and Julington Creek Plantation with a combined total of about $2.250
million in annual sales.

Café Management Approach: 

Our Team Member Centric Culture: We go out of our way to take care of our team members
because we think it is both the right thing to do and because we think it is smart business
over the long run (less turnover reduces costs, provides a more consistent customer
experience, exceptional team members are just that and hard to replace, higher morale =
better service = increased sales = sustainable operation). I (Jay King) am proud to say I
have never laid anyone off in my 9 years (staff of about 600 in peak season) with Vesta
despite various challenges such as COVID and the café closure, but we do let people go
when individual performance or fit is an issue and cannot be resolved with coaching.

Page 7



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

How we view our relationship with Grand Haven: 

Although the Board can terminate our agreement at any time with short notice, per our
contract we look at this as a long term relationship (as history has borne out). So, we make
decisions over a long horizon focused on what we think is best for Grand Haven with the
idea you will see value in keeping us around. We still have to earn your business on a daily
basis. We know some were surprised and, in some cases, critical of our retention of staff
during the closure as not being a sound business decision. However, we know how
important the team is to the residents, and we also knew how difficult it would be to recruit,
train and get back to the efficient operations and high level of customer satisfaction we
enjoyed before the café closed. I will argue that the opportunity cost of letting the staff go
would have added up for some time following our reopening (lower sales and higher costs
form inefficiencies than we would have otherwise incurred). History has shown us F&B
operations can be destroyed overnight but take a long time to recreate. We will not know
until the café has been open a few months what sustained bump in volume we get from
the remodel to make a full financial assessment, but it certainly seems like it will take many
months to recoup our investment in staff retention, but in the end I maintain that all
stakeholders (café customers, GH residents, Board, Waterside Café staff and Vesta) will
have done much better than if we let everyone go at the beginning of the remodel and
started over simply to reduce cost in the short term.

CDD F&B Operations are Different:

I have learned this the hard way. I have directly hired hundreds of management team
members over the course of my career spanning four industries. Team member transitions
are always a challenge, albeit a bit easier with a pool of 600+ team members between
Orlando and Jacksonville to source from in Grand Haven’s case. Succession planning is a
very necessary part of business to proactively manage turnover as much as possible
whether it is a result of accountability, empowering people to grow in their career, get
stimulated by new challenges, or realize other aspirations. Accessing mutual fit can be
particularly challenging. 

Regrettably, one of my worst fit hires was here at Grand Haven. Some may recall I recruited
one of the nicest people I have met who had a long successful career managing a variety
of traditional food and beverage operations to include one at Disney. He even wrote a book
on customer service. I felt like I understood why in his career he wanted to take on such a
project as ours for a variety of personal and professional reasons so after much vetting I
perceived there was a good mutual fit. I was very excited about the potential. I stressed to
him the uniqueness of our niche compared to the broader F&B business and believed he
understood. He quickly set about doing at the Waterside Café what had made him
successful during his career. He reduced portions, raised prices, cut staff and before I
realized what had happened, we had alienated our customer. Despite all of his emphasis
on customer service, he let short term profitability drive his decisions out of habit. It took us
quite some time to recover. 

Page 8



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Vesta Deliverables:

Value Pricing:  Per our current contract we have strived to keep pricing as low as possible
through leveraging specials, promoting competition between food vendors, careful menu
planning, team member training and kitchen management. We periodically benchmark off
our competition in the surrounding area to verify our pricing value. The results of John’s most
recent benchmarking, which was done for our updated menu in preparation for the
reopening are below. As you can see our pricing is well below the majority of our
competition.

I (Jay King) may not be as smart as I would like to be, but I do strive to learn from my
mistakes. It might surprise some that we would bring in someone with no previous F&B
experience subsequently. John has a lot of great qualities that make him so effective at his
job. A key part of John’s success in the café is he came to Grand Haven with a lot of amenity
management experience and then learned the F&B portion with that foundation. In the
amenity business we necessarily manage expenses (both the CDD’s and Vesta’s) and hold
ourselves accountable, but profit is not an emphasis, but rather the customer experience is.
So, John prioritizes the customer experience first. When you do that smartly and balance that
with sound operational and financial management you are successful over the long term.
We have a finite customer pool limited to the households in Grand Haven. We can’t make a
mistake and count on winning another customer in greater Palm Coast, therefore every one
of our customer interactions is critical. We need consistently satisfied customers who
frequent our café to be successful, and to John and the team’s credit they have done so. I
want to be very careful not to break anything with my decisions that is working. Been there,
done that, not fun.

Page 9



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Page 10



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Service Levels & Commitment: 

As mentioned before, we invested heavily in the retention of our team members so that
our loyal customer base would continue to see the familiar faces they value despite
COVID and the more recent extended café closure. We have received a lot of
compliments about our team members and the outstanding customer service they
provide as you can see in the section of our response featuring feedback from Grand
Haven residents, but perhaps the most quantifiable gauge of service success is in our
sales whereby satisfied customers vote with their dollars. Our sales rose from $641,656 in
2021 (first full year following the majority COVID impacts) to $1,022,997 in 2023 (the last full
year before the closure impacted the end of 2024). That is a 37% increase in sales over
that period. 

We have acted on customer feedback in small ways and in big ways. Perhaps the best
example of that was the most recent attempt to make the Tiki Hut sustainable. Despite
several failed attempts over the years prior, John has been able to make a go of it since
he took the helm. We use the proceeds from the most successful portion of the season to
enable it to be open as much as possible when volume does not cover costs in slower
periods and servers need to have guaranteed wages with us striving to break even on a
direct cost basis. We know this is not money making effort, but we also realize it is
important to our customers.

Commitment To Our Partnership: 

As per the previous financials shared with the Board covering six years from 2019 thru an
estimated 2025 (and now updated YTD thru July) revenues have totaled $4,505,526. Direct
costs (onsite labor, COGS and misc.) totaled $4,201,432. So, the proceeds before any offsite
support costs (Staffing, HR, Insurance, Regional Management, etc.) were $304,904 or 6.75%
of sales. When we allocated the same amount of overhead for offsite support as we use
across our organization, we show a loss of $63,557. Now that was despite COVID and the
loss of revenue during the café closure while still retaining the staff, so an unusually
challenging operating environment. Despite the financials challenges, some
unprecedented, we have maintained our commitment to enhancing the customer
experience. It might not make sense on a monthly or even annual P&L basis as in 2025, but
it does make sense when you are committed to a long term partnership as we are with
Grand Haven.

Page 11



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Pricing/Operating Models: 

We are proposing three different operation models for the Board to consider:

1. 5% revenue Share (per RFP): Under this arrangement the CDD would receive 5% of all
net sales with all profit and loss being borne by Vesta. Prices would need to be adjusted
as necessary to offset the expense, but otherwise strive to keep our current emphasis
on service levels and pricing. This arrangement would provide a source of revenue to
offset CDD expenses.

2. Status Quo (RFP Alternate A): This would keep the current arrangement in place with an
emphasis on keeping pricing down and services levels high as we have operated under
during the current contract. This scenario would provide lower pricing than option #1
above but would not provide any revenue to the CDD.

3. Fixed Management Fee (RFP Alternate B): This model is how we currently operate the
café at RiverTown and provides the most flexibility. Under this operational model Vesta
receives fixed monthly compensation for its offsite costs and a management fee. The
RiverTown Board also has an incentive structure in place to award the onsite team for
sound financial and operational performance and then all the remaining proceeds go
to the CDD. Over the last 12 months, the RiverTown CDD received about 2.4% of net sales
from this arrangement with their guidance to not lose money but otherwise reinvest in
the operation (maximize operational hours, staffing, value pricing, add equipment, etc.).

See following page for more detail.

Page 12



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

Page 13

We are offering the three options below with differences summarized in the table
for your consideration:



F AND B
MANAGEMENT

This model is characterized by:

Fixed and transparent Vesta management and support expenses.
Board can set the objectives they desire such as where the costs of the operation
should be borne along the continuum of café user (keep pricing down and service
levels high) to CDD member but non café user (generate revenue for the CDD). 

Examples of possible Board direction:

Break even to keep prices as low as possible and customer service levels high.
Generate revenue for the CDD offset direct (i.e. café remodel) or indirect costs (i.e. non
café related expenses).
Set operational hours/offerings that might not otherwise make financial sense but
provide a benefit to the residents in lieu of additional revenue to the CDD such as
expanding the Tiki Hut hours/season.

Throughout the year Grand Haven’s Waterside Café is known for having great special
events and nights focused around specific cuisines.  Some of these include:

Pierogi Night
Prime Rib Night 
Taco Tuesday 
Burger Basket Thursday 
Fish Friday 
Fat Tuesday/Margi Gras 

St. Patrick Day 
Mother's Day 
Father's Day 
Resident Appreciation Day
Oktoberfest 
Bourbon Tasting

Tequlia Tastings
Scotch Tastings
Luau at the Tiki Hut 

Future Plans:

 We need to allow for our operation to settle into the reopening of the café and make any
necessary adjustments once we have a better sense of what the new normal will look like. I
believe we will have a pretty good idea at about the 90 day mark when we have enough
data to compare to the same period before the closure and analyze the variances.

However we are planning to undertake the following initiatives:

1. Expanded Breakfast Hours: We are looking forward to expanding our breakfast hours as
our next initiative once our operations settle in following the grand opening.

2. Sunday Brunch: Will be the second initiative we focus on delivering. 
3.Tiki Hut Expansion: Finally, we will be looking to expand the Tiki Hut hours beyond what

has historically been possible given revenue and labor constraints.

How we go about the initiatives above will depend on how the next contract is structured as
per the following section, but all are attainable with effort.. 

Page 14



GENERAL
MANAGEMENT

The Board is very familiar with our approach to amenity management and there
have been very few questions, and the resident feedback section also affirms our
approach from a customer service standpoint so we will keep our comments in
this section brief. Vesta takes great pride in maintaining your amenities, from the
pools, to fitness centers, to turning over the rental spaces, to greeting residents
as they enter the facilities, supporting a wide variety of programming, keeping
the bathrooms fresh and welcoming, to supporting resident’s administrative
needs. 

We are particularly proud of our maintenance of Grand Haven’s 7 fabulous Har-
Tru clay tennis courts. Led by 13 year Vesta employee Bryan Roth, with help from
three more Har-Tru trained employees (to include John periodically), the courts
are groomed seven days a week at a minimum of 4 hours per day. Upkeep
includes smoothing out the clay, brushing lines, cleaning the nets and algae
agitation occurs daily. Rolling of courts takes place twice per month, and laying
of additional clay occurs when needed. (usually after strong rains).

In addition, windscreens and clay gutters must constantly be maintained. The
team takes great pride in keeping the courts some of the best in north Florida.
Resident feedback stating that they are some of the highest quality courts they
play on keeps the team highly motivated to ensure this amenity stays at the
status quo.

Page 15



GENERAL
MANAGEMENT

We are offering the three options below with differences summarized in the table for
your consideration:

Page 16



Events COMMUNITY
LIFESTYLE

Regional Lifestyle Dir. with 20+ years of experience in events, entertainment and
programming for multiple, high-quality companies and communities.
Vesta's 50-page Lifestyle Handbook used for training and reference. 
Hands-on help with staff turnover/transitions and Managers' use of PTO benefits.
Preferred Vendors List, enabling some of the best pricing in the industry.
Quarterly Lifestyle Newsletter provided to the entire state, featuring new vendors,
new ideas, and more for all Vesta Amenity Managers.
Monthly Training sessions; Quarterly Idea-Sharing sessions with all Managers.
Shared Expertise: Oversee 12 Community Events Budgets ($9,000-$85,000/yr.)

Pickleball Clinics 
Kids Pickleball Clinics
Murder Mystery 
Line Dancing 
Ballroom Dancing 
Bingo 
LANE (Living Alone Not Easy)
Luncheons
Trivia
Name that Tune
Live Music
DJs
Karaoke
Festivals

Mahjong 
Bridge 
Canasta 
Hand and Foot
Scrabble 
Poker 
Bunco 
Mexican Train 
Table Tennis 
Rummikub 
Calligraphy 
Book Club
Pickleball

Tennis Tournaments
Bocce League 
Mustang Club 
Valentine's Dinner
Easter Egg Hunts 
Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day 
Halloween Party 
Christmas Tree
Lighting/Choir
Christmas's Dinner 
New Year Eve Party

Grand Haven’s Lifestyle at a Glance

Resources and Support For Vesta’s Property Managers

Page 17



Yoga 
Chair Yoga 
Aqua Yoga 
Aqua Dance 
Water Aerobics 
Weights & Stretch 
Zumba 

COMMUNITY
PROGRAMMING

Ballet 
Tai Chi 
Sit & Dance 
Pilates
Barre & Weights 
Move to Music 
Pool Volleyball 
Lap Swim

We currently offering the following classes at Grand Haven:

Page 18



Hey Todd!

Thank you for the information. You do an amazing job with the events that you
administer. And those events have become a hallmark of our community as they
do a great job of fostering community engagement and cohesiveness and are
greatly appreciated. 

Heritage Landing CDD Resident



COMMUNITY
WEBSITE

Vesta developed, produced and manages a dynamic community
website which includes the following features:

Details include:

Rental information
and reservation links
Hours and contact
info
Additional features
available upon board
request

Vesta Data Servers are primarily hosted in Atlanta at a secure data hosting
facility. For backup functions we host at several locations in Utah and Idaho. 
All DATA on our servers is protected by several layers of protection. DATA is
encrypted on the physical devices at the DATA Facilities. Access to any files is
limited by group policy to only necessary internal employees. And all devices are
covered by IT’s antimalware solutions and policies. 

Resident directory
Online ordering for
Waterside Café
Program and activity flyers
and information
Club information
Event calendar

Page 20



RESIDENT
ENGAGEMENT

Comprehensive, creative and high-quality lifestyle and maintenance newsletters, flyers,
e-blasts, and other forms of resident engagement.
Engaging bulletin boards throughout the community filled with flyers and newsletters.
Our teams are trained to take photos and video at community events and programs to
share our real-time resident engagement.
QR Code Surveys assess resident feedback throughout the year in order for us to make
adjustments according to community wants and needs.
Constant onsite discussions with residents during the year help us understand
expectations.

Page 21



Vesta's Approach to Quality Assurance

Our local Regional Support Team, in partnership with our onsite teams, Boards, and
other stakeholders, have developed scalable and customizable Best Practices
tailored to each account and scope-of-service, to ensure an optimal experience for
our residents. Our approach has and continues to evolve with feedback, advances in
technology, and further experience. 

Vesta's approach, while varied in application, is designed to eliminate issues before
they occur - or at least quickly and efficiently address them as they are identified - to
provide the best possible experience for all stakeholders.

*We do not use all of these tools at every account, but we do use most them at our
largest accounts based on amount of resources, scope of services and Board
driven priorities to ensure the best use of finite resources.

Initial Operational 
Analysis

Board Reporting 
& Engagement

Resident
Satisfaction

Audits & 
 Inspections

Vendor & Project
Management

Team Member
Development

Local Regional
Support Team

Operational
Checklists

NOTE: These 8 components of Vesta's approach to Quality Assurance are
explained further on the following pages.

QUALITY
ASSURANCE

Page 22



For new accounts, our regional team will develop an operational analysis
plan and timeline (who, what and when) within the first 45 days of starting
the contract, to share with the Board prior to implementation. This approach
will allow time for familiarization and review of current operations,
engagement with all stakeholders, and finally recommendations to
"optimize" the overall resident experience, daily operations, and opportunities
for financial efficiencies.

Julington Creek Plantation CDD  Example
The most relevant example of this same type of in-depth analysis is our
undertaking at Julington Creek Plantation CDD, which at the time we began
our operations there was already a 20+-year-old community of nearly 5,900
homes, and largely staffed by CDD-employed associates. Over the course of
our first 6 months, Vesta conducted an “Optimization Study,” resulting in a
detailed, 20-page analysis of all aspects of the amenity/recreation
operation along with recommendations. 

The implementation of our recommendations resulted in:

A savings to the CDD of 23%
or $373,000 annually in 2022
dollars (using a general
ledger, line-by-line
comparison with the year
before we started).

Simultaneously improving
stakeholders' (Residents,
Board, District Staff, and
Vesta onsite team members)
satisfaction with our
operation. 

(Yes, "the best of both worlds!")

OPERATIONAL 
ANALYSIS

Page 23



We keep track of Action Items from your CDD meetings, confirm we have them
correctly captured within 48 hours of the meeting via email, and then provide to all
board members and staff. We then provide updates until completion of each item to
ensure nothing is dropped and expectations are managed accordingly.  Our Master
Task List is developed during facility walk/inspections. This list also includes capital and
regular project list costs. 

BOARD REPORTING
AND ENGAGEMENT

Page 24



BOARD REPORTING
AND ENGAGEMENT

Our onsite management team will provide weekly and monthly board updates
via email on any items of interest to ensure the whole Board is kept up to speed
efficiently.  Per board feedback, our reports at Grand Haven are streamlined.

Board Reporting Includes:

Recap of significant operational events
Highlight upcoming events and recaps of previous events, reporting of all community lifestyle
Status of projects and ongoing maintenance items
Update on Board Action Items

Page 25



QR CODE
CHECKLISTS

Using QR codes similar to how we produce our resident surveys, Grand Haven
management uses QR codes that employees scan daily to go through their daily
duties and checklists.  See examples of the checklists and reporting below.

Page 26



We have found that “point-of-experience” (QR) surveying is far more valuable
and less intrusive than formal, periodic, emailed resident surveys. So, we place
them conveniently throughout our facilities to capture feedback. 

QR Coded Resident Survey (example below)
Located conveniently throughout facilities on aesthetically appropriate
placards, to provide an opportunity for residents to easily provide feedback
on their experience, and only when they want to do so.
Surveys can be tailored based on location (tennis courts, events, reception
area, pools, café, locker rooms, parks, etc.)
Residents simply use their phone to complete the quick survey.
Utilizes rating scale questions to provide benchmark analysis over time, as
well as text boxes to provide detailed and open-ended feedback.
If residents desire, they can be contacted directly by our team so that we
can personally follow up on their experience.
Survey links can also be placed on the app or website as desired and/or
hard copies made available to suit resident-preference.
Consistent feedback is then shared with the Board through manager
reporting, along with any necessary action items.

RESIDENT
SATISFACTION

Page 27



We take a couple of approaches to formal facility and infrastructure
inspections in addition to those we support from District Engineer Reports and
Reserve Studies. 

Our Regional Team performs periodic, customized inspections based on our
scope-of-services, as needed (such as upon commencement of the
contract, based on operational issues, turnover of key staff, etc.), to provide
offsite accountability for Vesta's onsite team. We also want to ensure that
we set everyone up for success, share best practices, and avoid "blind
spots" by conducting these periodic "peer walks."

Managers in similar positions are paired and provided the opportunity to
walk each other’s properties, point out opportunities and solutions, as well as
share best practices for mutual and informal benefit. They then provide a
summary of what they learned, so we can ensure there is sufficient value and
best-determine how to plan subsequent experiences and/or development
opportunities.

FACILITY
INSPECTIONS

Page 28



Lifeguard Audits

Our Lifeguards are audited by their supervisors on an ongoing and random basis
while they are working to ensure sustained proficiency in their lifesaving skillset. These
audits include passive observations as well as active engagements to test their
response times, CPR and first aid proficiency, ensure they have the required gear in
their kits and the opportunity to save an actor who pretends to be drowning, etc.

We conduct a variety of team member audits to ensure their training sticks and
provides ongoing feedback and coaching to set us and our team up for success.

AUDITS

 Audits

When a leader witnesses an
interaction between a resident and a
team member that has opportunity
to be improved or to be reinforced
and celebrated, the individual is
pulled aside informally at the first
available moment to coach or
congratulate.
We have several audit checklists that
our Regional teams use during site
visits and walkthroughs which allow
us to observe and make
improvements where needed.

Page 29



Vesta has over four hours of Customer Service Training modules featuring valuable
information conveyed through presentation slides, video reenactments, and hands-on,
role-play exercises that we developed to provide all of our team members with the
very best in Customer Service Training.  

These modules include specific training for hourly staff, mid-level managers, and
general managers, and have been custom-made by Vesta to fit our specific needs.  

Some of our training topics include the following:

What is customer service?
How to deliver proper customer service?
Customer service challenges and potential
solutions
Defining our customers
Identifying conflicts of all types and how to
deescalate and resolve
Body language and perception
Anticipation
Following through and following up
Service recovery
The HEART Model
The 10-5 Rule

I'm very grateful for your stewardship that has supported and improved our
community in so many ways. I'm thankful for our partnership with Vesta and the
individual relationships I've built with each member of your team. 

It is a group committed to our success, with a willing spirit that consistently goes
above and beyond to serve our residents.

Chris Sexton, former Board Chairman; Julington Creek Plantation CDD

CUSTOMER
SERVICE



We've developed tools such as our “Landscape Accountability Tool” that ties a
vendor’s contract to efficient evaluation criteria, to best-ensure the highest
levels of service and timely, specific, and measurable feedback. We have also
worked to create more competition in the marketplace by using our local
economies of scale to draw in new vendors as needed.

VENDOR
MANAGEMENT

Page 31



VENDOR
MANAGEMENT
Pond Scorecard with Map

Page 32



Multiple members of our team at Grand Haven are CPO certified and we use daily
logs and checklists to keep track of all pool related things.  We have dedicated
personnel who manage all pool operations at Village Center and Creekside
amenities, including but not limited to checking pool/spa readings, adjusting
chemicals, brushing pool and spa walls, skimming the pool and spa, vacuuming the
pool and spa and changing the pool filters and spa if needed. We have never had a
pool closure for a chemical imbalance during John’s tenure.  

MAINTENANCE
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 33



In other communities we are using software and apps for work orders and
accountability chosen based on the size of the community.  The software can be
integrated into our website directly or used manually by staff and vendors to start,
track and complete work orders.  This allows us to report the work, track time, show
pictures and hold all parties responsible for completion of work.   

MAINTENANCE
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 34



MAINTENANCE
AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Page 35



Vesta actively supports all aspects of projects that our client-CDDs
undertake, from sourcing vendors, aiding the board in their decision-
making process, and then working closely with hired vendors. 

We leverage our expertise and the vendors' while providing accountability
regarding their quality of work and contracted scope of work, to best ensure
that all stakeholders are engaged and kept updated on (1) work progress
to-date; (2) that the work is completed on-time; and (3) that the best
overall value is provided to the CDD. 

Vesta has many years of close experience with local vendors and we share
our recommendations across all of our client locations. We have
participated in regular capital work such as pool resurfacing, addition of
pickleball courts, and complex, multi-million dollar enhancement projects.
Examples are shown below.

PROJECT
MANAGEMENT

Page 36



E
X
P
L
A
N
A
T
IO

N
PEO (PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYER ORGANIZATION)

01.

02.

03.

04.

Oversight

Staffing/Succession Planning 

CDD Experts

For any boards that are interested, Vesta not only offers the
traditional HR structure, but now has recently launched a model
where Vesta serves as a PEO (Professional Employer
Organization.) 

We quote the HR support structure depending on what level of
support each opportunity requires (ie: some don’t want the full
suite including payroll and benefits, only fractional HR engagement
and staffing support which would price differently). 

HUMAN
RESOURCES

Customizable

The PEO model would not move the specified employees under
Vesta, but would instead be a bit more removed with the Board
having more involvement/jurisdiction over the employees. Thus,
enabling Boards to directly oversee onsite staff, but still maintain
access to the full suite of support and expertise (HR, staffing,
benefits, IT, accounting, payroll, etc.) and realize cost efficiencies
they could not realize themselves. 

We can provide both accomplished industry team members to fill
their vacancies as well as provide their team members an
opportunity to network and grow in their career elsewhere which
helps to attract and retain top talent and enable former team
members to be accessible for ongoing support.

Our skilled HR team is specialized and well-versed in their respective
areas of expertise. Talent acquisition (a team of 3, focused on job
postings, screening, interviewing and onboarding), Engagement (a
dedicated field Generalist that spearheads performance management
and other engagement needs while visiting the location weekly), a
Benefits Manager who can assist with benefits questions and
insurance issues, and HR leadership who ensures that accounts are
receiving up to date and legally accurate HR support and guidance. 

We are accustomed to working in CDD environments, adapting to
unique community needs and requirements around sovereign
immunity and insurance requirements unlike typical PEOs. Our
industry knowledge is unparalleled, and we can navigate the
nuances of this industry more adeptly than “normal” PEOs.  

HR Experts05.

Page 37



EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Page 38



WHAT PEOPLE ARE SAYING ABOUT US IN GRAND HAVEN

Vesta has provided us with a great crew and staff, unfortunately the issue with the
cafe taking this long has nothing to do with John or his staff.  I am in full support of
Vesta.

John is always available he is reliable and helpful. The chefs always have a great
variety on the menu and are open to suggestions. The staff is polite helpful and
really cares about the residents of Grand Haven.

Please do not hesitate to call on me if needed.

Thank you

Barbara Correa

John,

Just wanted to drop you a note to tell you how much I appreciate all that Brittani
does for me. Trying to put together a schedule for ballet that works has been a true
trial and error process. We’ve changed it multiple times, and Brittani updates the
schedule and sends out special notices to keep us informed. She always verifies her
information before sending it out to be sure that we have communicated the
changes effectively. 

Brittani has also been extremely helpful with the Grand Haven Woman’s Club
eBlasts. She keeps a detailed schedule of all our event notifications which
streamlines the process for everyone. She has worked with me several times to
create attractive and effective flyers for many of our events and always does it with
a smile. 

Having employees who are pleasant to work with as well as being very proficient is
awesome!

Thanks,

Laura McBride

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 39



I would like to write this note in support of our wonderful management team.  I have
had frequent interactions over the years with John, Brittani, the facilitators and the
staff of Waterside Cafe.  Every Vesta employee who I have had the pleasure of
working with has been professional, helpful and kind.  I love their "can do" approach
to every request made. If something can't be done, they are great about explaining
why.  

Brittani is so much fun to work with - she is such a positive person, and is really
great at her job. She creates beautiful flyers for community circulation, handles
registrations for various events, and manages guest registrations - all with a smile!  

John is a pleasure to work with as well. He has great ideas for planning and
managing events and jumps into the execution of all of them. I have seen him
many nights at the cafe, bussing tables well into the evening.  He is great at a grill
too!  He also has the unenviable job of mediating disagreements among residents,
and he is so calm and professional dealing with those.  I don't know what his role is
in hiring servers and office personnel - but if he has anything to do with that, he
certainly has excellent human resource skills.  My husband and I have commented
frequently about the quality of the staff around Village Center.  The facilitators are
strict but fair when enforcing all of our rules and regulations - and are very helpful
whenever we have had any problems with the facilities.  They are all very friendly - I
look forward to saying hello to all of them each day.

I believe our community is very blessed to have our Vesta employees here, keeping
our premises clean, safe and fun! I look forward to the day Waterside Cafe finally
re-opens.

Sincerely,

Jenny Scott
9 Augusta Trail

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 40



Dear Jay/Vesta,  

My husband has been a property owner here in Grand Haven for 20 years. After
retiring we finally became Floridians permanently in 2017. I had no expectations
about living in a community like this. So, to say that I was pleasantly surprised is an
enormous understatement. There is literally no where I'd rather be. 

And that is a testimony to John Luchansky (and Robert Ross before him), his
extremely capable staff and Vesta. They all work tirelessly for us and I hope they
know how much we appreciate them. John, who has to listen to everyone's
questions and complaints, does so with great patience. Thank you, John, Brittany,
and Heidi, you are always cheerful and smiling while you answer our dumb
questions. Thank you.

Steven and kitchen staff, our bellies are kept full ,and I have never had a bad meal.
Thank you. Tiffani, Marion, Laura, April, Hannah and Jemima, you guys are rock stars
and we love you. Thank you. Facilitators, you take care of us and our needs and our
surroundings in numerous ways everyday. Thank you.

We hope to continue to have many more years with each and everyone of you.
Sincerely, Marcie & Mike Leonard

I have lived in Wild Oaks at Grand Haven for five years. One of the main reasons we
bought here was the wonderful amenities available to us. I am a daily lap swimmer
at the Village Center pool. I wanted to complement you and your staff for making
my experience so pleasant. Your staff is always courteous and keep the facilities
and changing rooms clean. 

I especially would like to recognize Travis for the excellent job he does maintaining
our pools here in Grand Haven. The pools are always clean, and the water is crystal
clear. His job is certainly a challenge to keep the pools so nice especially with all
the use they get. I would like to thank you and your staff again for making my
experience so nice. 

Terence Baur 5 Scarlet Oak Ct 

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 41



Good Morning,

My name is Amy Beilman. I've lived in Grand Haven almost 20 years. My husband,
Lewis, and I chose this community because of the amenities. We were very active
and newly retired. It was the right choice.

By far, out of the five directors that I have known here, John Lucansky has put
together the best team. He has combined very experienced employees (like Steven
the cook), with many new, hard-working people. As a manager, I believe that John
brings out the best that Vesta's employees have to give.  

Almost 18 years ago, Lewis and I started Move to Music, an exercise/movement
class in Grand Haven, and the program was--and continues to be--extremely
successful. At times, Vesta had to adjust locations and class times to ensure that a
large group of people could do this program. Vesta always did their best to make
Move to Music happen twice a week.

Lewis and I also used to hold an annual fundraIser in Grand Haven for a nonprofit,
Support for People with Oral and Head and Neck Cancer (SPOHNC), and Vesta
helped to set up the entire event. It was a complicated process and it wouldn't
have happened without Vesta. One year they even contributed to the fundraiser.

Lewis passed away in October 2023, and the celebration of life was held at the
Village Center on a Sunday morning in December 2023. John and his staff were
unbelievable in facilitating this gathering. They felt like family and have supported
so many of us over the years. There were 175 people there that day. Vesta made it
happen.

I'm grateful to be living here. John and his team have been instrumental in setting
the tone for us all.

If I had a vote, I'd vote to continue to use Vesta--and to continue to support John,
who has attracted a great team.

Thank you for your consideration.

Amy Beilman
14 Lakeside Way
Palm Coast, Fl. 32137

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 42



John

As you know, I run a tennis group of about 16-20 people on Tuesdays. I also play
tennis on most Sundays/Mondays/Wednesdays and Fridays. I want you to know
what a great job Brian Roth does in maintaining our tennis courts. He works hard
every day(including weekends) to keep them in great playing condition. 

I have played at Palm Coast Tennis Center as well as Hammock and our courts are
in better playing condition due to the outstanding job Brian does in court
maintenance. I wanted to pass on to you and your management how much we
appreciate his dedication to providing us with excellent conditioned tennis courts.

Please pass along our thanks to Brian.

On behalf of many of us Grand Haven tennis players, I must concur that Brian Roth
has been doing an excellent job of maintaining our courts. He consistently exhibits
an exceptional level of dedication to the thoroughness as well as regularity of the
court grooming and overall maintenance. 

He is undoubtedly an asset to our system of amenities here, and we are grateful for
his fine efforts.

Respectfully submitted,

Christy Albin

I concur with the many comments about Brian Roth and the care he takes as
regards the grooming of the courts. I want to share a recent experience I had with
Brian that further demonstrates the positive efforts he undertook to make our
experience on the courts a successful and safe one. I was playing tennis with Lynn,
our daughter and grandson. I happened to look across the court and Brian was
spraying the fencing with a spray can . When we asked him what he was up to, he
said there were some wasps there trying to make a nest and he wanted to make
sure none of us got stung. What more can I say about his sense of responsibility?
That’s just the way he is: caring, true and dependable.
 
Steve Brazen

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 43



Good Morning,

My name is Amy Beilman. I've lived in Grand Haven almost 20 years. My husband,
Lewis, and I chose this community because of the amenities. We were very active
and newly retired. It was the right choice.

By far, out of the five directors that I have known here, John Lucansky has put
together the best team. He has combined very experienced employees (like Steven
the cook), with many new, hard-working people. As a manager, I believe that John
brings out the best that Vesta's employees have to give.  

Almost 18 years ago, Lewis and I started Move to Music, an exercise/movement
class in Grand Haven, and the program was--and continues to be--extremely
successful. At times, Vesta had to adjust locations and class times to ensure that a
large group of people could do this program. Vesta always did their best to make
Move to Music happen twice a week.

Lewis and I also used to hold an annual fundraIser in Grand Haven for a nonprofit,
Support for People with Oral and Head and Neck Cancer (SPOHNC), and Vesta
helped to set up the entire event. It was a complicated process and it wouldn't
have happened without Vesta. One year they even contributed to the fundraiser.

Lewis passed away in October 2023, and the celebration of life was held at the
Village Center on a Sunday morning in December 2023. John and his staff were
unbelievable in facilitating this gathering. They felt like family and have supported
so many of us over the years. There were 175 people there that day. Vesta made it
happen.

I'm grateful to be living here. John and his team have been instrumental in setting
the tone for us all.

If I had a vote, I'd vote to continue to use Vesta--and to continue to support John,
who has attracted a great team.

Thank you for your consideration.

Amy Beilman
14 Lakeside Way
Palm Coast, Fl. 32137

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 44



John,

 I just wanted to drop you a note to express my appreciation for all the support you
have given me in getting a second ballet class added to the busy Grand Haven
Room calendar. I’ve been having as many as 18 students attending my class
who’ve been asking me to restore our second class as soon as possible because of
the physical and spriritual benefit they receive from dance. It means a great deal
to all of us. 

 And while I’m on that subject, I want to thank all the facilitators, both past and
present who’ve set up and taken down our bars for every class. They have very little
time between classes to make the changeover, so it can be stressful. They’ve never
complained and always check in with me to make sure we have enough. Adam
and Scott have been our most recent partners, but we’ve also had many in the
past starting with Travis since I’ve been involved. Thanks to all!

 Laura McBride 

Dear John:

I would like to take this opportunity to commend one of your employees.  His name
is Scott.  He opens up the amenities center at 5:45 AM every morning I am there to
swim on Monday, Wednesday and Fridays.

He is very courteous, efficient, and knowledgeable in all the duties that he must do
to open the center and keep it running smoothly.

I’ve seen him do some things with respect to cleanliness that I’ve not seen others do.
This is not to say others don’t do what I’ve seen him do.  He is just so noticable and
quick in getting the job done.  You can be very proud of Scott, and the way he does
his job with no supervision.  He is a very trustworthy member of your stuff.  Please
acknowledge him in an appropriate ceremony.

Thank you.

Thomas J. Cavey
Major (Retired)
US Army

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 45



We purchased property in Grand Haven in 1997 while I was still serving on active
duty and built a home hoping to retire here. I retired from the USAF in 2000, and
after leaving the Pentagon moved full time to our home in Grand Haven. I then
served as President of the Developer’s Advisory Board and subsequently as Vice
President and President of the MHOA where I supported the addition of Tennis
courts for our growing community.   Early on I was asked to write the ‘Rules of the
Road”, including disciplinary actions, for both the Amenity Center and Golf Course.
As our community continued to build out, we had the normal growing pains, but
were blessed with Amenity Managers of common sense, fairness and attention to
detail. That included Howard and Robert.

 Our current Manager, John Lucansky, has raised the performance bar even further
yet John’s attention to detail, consideration for the myriad needs and demands of
residents and ability to run an effective and efficient ship is simply world class. 
Capt. Bernie Hollenbeck, Dr. Rob Carlson and myself designed, raised funds and
with the approval and assistance of the CDD built the military memorial in front of
the Village Center. That most successful effort was provided with an immeasurable
amount of support by John and his staff to honor Grand Haven’s many, many
Veterans and their loved ones. 

After 40 years of Military Service and many Commands, I can attest to the superb
leadership and graciousness of John’s stewardship of our Amenities. We are
blessed to have him as our Amenity Manager. 

Maj. Gen. Wilfred Hessert, USAF (Ret.)
17 Silver Glen Drive
Palm Coast, Fl. 32137

We have owned several properties in the crossings where we now live in one full
time. We can not say enough good things about the Vesta employees. Starting with
John who is not only hard working but creative, helpful, but open to making Grand
Haven a better place. All that work for him are the same way. 
 
James and Eileen Larkin 

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 46



Mr. King - I was a resident of Grand Haven from 2016 to 2023. I still have contact
with many friends there and have heard that Barry and the CDD is planning to go
out for bids on the Vesta contract.
 
I’m sure I will not be the only one to write in FULL SUPPORT of the entire Vesta staff.
Every one of them is a hard worker, friendly to the residents and a great reflection
on your company. Although they each are an important part of the overall
management of the Village Center, nothing could be accomplished without the
direction and support of John Lucansky. John was an absolute joy to work with on
any event. He was always open to suggestions on how to add to or improve the
activities there (bingo, trivia night) and worked hard to see that every event was a
success. I was there, too, when Robert Ross was the manager and, as much as we
hated to see him go, we were even happier with John as the replacement.
 
Replacing Vesta with another company and all new employees would be very
disruptive to what is already a well oiled machine, in my opinion. Please let me and
the other supporters of Vesta know if it would be of help to contact Barry and the
board members directly in this regard.
 
Kindest regards,
 
Pat Powell
Formerly at 200 Riverfront Dr, D203
 

My husband and I have been in Grand Haven for 7 years and have spent many,
many enjoyable evenings at the cafe playing trivia, dinners after Bingo and some
simply delicious meals thanks to John and his friendly staff. They have been sorely
missed and we can’t wait to start enjoying some of those fun evenings again. 

Bob and Diane Paul

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 47



My husband and I have been residents of Grand Haven for almost 20 years. The
leadership from Vesta amenities has been the best in these last years with John
Luchansky and his team at the helm than in all previous years. We have been
through several managers in those 20 years and John has been the best. He has
had to listen to residents complain and suggest and he has listened to everyone
He has been responsive to requests from Woman's club, for special events such as
fundraisers and he is always present during these functions.
 
Brian, a facilitator, has been maintaining the tennis courts faithfully for several
years...he is there day, night, and weekends to make sure the courts are prepared
and safe for residents. We have some of the best tennis courts in Palm Coast as a
result.
 
Stephen has been our chef for 17 years. His food preparation has made the Village
Center cafe one of the best places to eat in Palm Coast. He is always friendly and
open to suggestions from the residents. We all anxiously await the opening of the
cafe and miss his culinary expertise!
 
The wait staff at the cafe has been excellent, and we hope they will all return when
the cafe opens. The cafe has been such a special gathering place for all the
residents...it's our own "Cheers".
 
It's our hope that things will continue to go on as they have with John and his team
in charge. Please don't fix what isn't broken.
 
Sincerely,
 
Gail and Bob Naworal

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 48



We have been residents at Grand Haven for 9 years. We may not have moved to
Grand Haven since we were looking at Sea Colony but we met Travis on our visit to
the Creekside pool. After attending an open house, we wanted to see the
amenities. Travis greeted us and told us how much we would enjoy living here. He
said the residents were great and there were a lot of classes and activities to get
involved in. He spent time talking with us. I thought that was so telling of the
relationship that Vesta has with the community. To this day, I tell that story.

John Luchansky, Tiffani, Steven and all the waitstaff solidified our decision that we
came to the right community. Brian is amazing with the court maintenance as well
as all of the facilitators. Brittany and Heidi are always welcoming and very patient
with our many inquiries.

John and his team provide support for our Woman’s Club and charities supported
by the residents. They also put on Holiday events like the traditional Christmas
concert complete with the drink of John’s predecessor, Robert.

The evening activities are always well attended - trivia, bingo, karaoke, etc. The tiki
bar provides casual dining and entertainment especially with the renovation of the
café.

We look forward to many more gatherings and fun with John’s team.

Carol & Russ Walker

We have been extremely happy with how well Vesta Property Services have handled
the cafe and amenities here in Grand Haven. The staff do a great job and we hope
they are here for many years to come!
 
THANK YOU,
Donna and Shelby Oatts
17 Lakeside Dr., Palm Coast.

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 49



Good Morning,

My name is Amy Beilman. I've lived in Grand Haven almost 20 years. My husband,
Lewis, and I chose this community because of the amenities. We were very active
and newly retired. It was the right choice.

By far, out of the five directors that I have known here, John Lucansky has put
together the best team. He has combined very experienced employees (like Steven
the cook), with many new, hard-working people. As a manager, I believe that John
brings out the best that Vesta's employees have to give.  

Almost 18 years ago, Lewis and I started Move to Music, an exercise/movement
class in Grand Haven, and the program was--and continues to be--extremely
successful. At times, Vesta had to adjust locations and class times to ensure that a
large group of people could do this program. Vesta always did their best to make
Move to Music happen twice a week.

Lewis and I also used to hold an annual fundraIser in Grand Haven for a nonprofit,
Support for People with Oral and Head and Neck Cancer (SPOHNC), and Vesta
helped to set up the entire event. It was a complicated process and it wouldn't
have happened without Vesta. One year they even contributed to the fundraiser.

Lewis passed away in October 2023, and the celebration of life was held at the
Village Center on a Sunday morning in December 2023. John and his staff were
unbelievable in facilitating this gathering. They felt like family and have supported
so many of us over the years. There were 175 people there that day. Vesta made it
happen.

I'm grateful to be living here. John and his team have been instrumental in setting
the tone for us all.

If I had a vote, I'd vote to continue to use Vesta--and to continue to support John,
who has attracted a great team.

Thank you for your consideration.

Amy Beilman
14 Lakeside Way
Palm Coast, Fl. 32137

RESIDENT
 EXPERIENCE

Page 50



KEY PERSONNEL 



Corporate Support Team On-Site TeamRegional Support Team

Jay King
Regional President

Roy Deary
VP Business
Development

Heather Beladi
VP of Community
Management

Travis L Sechman
Lead Facilitator/CPO

Grand Haven
CDD

John Lucansky
Amenity Manager

Tiffani Hefner
Restaurant Manager

Ross Ruben
Regional LIfestyle

Director

Dana Harden
Regional General

Manager

Jaquelyn Chau
Regional HR Partner

Charlotte Whitehead
Regional Administrator

Sean Smith
Regional Aquatics
Director

Priscila Gieselman
Regional Accountant

Christine Richie
Chief Accounting Officer

David Surface
Chief Executive Officer

Dan Armstrong
Chief Financial Officer

Scott Smith
VP District Services/NE Amenity
Operations

Catherine Whyte
VP Human Resources

Kevin Johnston
Director of Marketing

Chris Hodge
VP Corporate Counsel

Patti Brown
Director Business Development

Jason Davidson
Regional Manager

Stephen Winston
Head Chef

Heidi Black
Lifestyle Director

Brittani Thomas
Office Manager

ORGANIZATIONAL
CHART

Page 52



GRAND HAVEN’S
TEAM

John has over 16 years of experience in Amenity Management.
Starting with Vesta as Sports Director in 2009 he took a small group of
soccer and flag football kids and developed a sports program that
increased to over 650 participants. In 2011 , he was offered the position
of Amenity Manager at Bartram Springs working with a family
community hosting kids Summer camps, holiday parties, movies on
the lawn, Friday food trucks, pool parties and so much more. Then in
2019, he was given the opportunity to oversee the amenities at Grand
Haven, a choice he took head on. As General Manager at Grand
Haven, he specializes in curating and overseeing premium lifestyle
services that enhance resident and guest satisfaction. With a strong
background in hospitality and property management, he is dedicated
to creating welcoming, well-maintained, and engaging spaces that
promote community, comfort, and convenience.

Becoming the Amenity Manager at Grand Haven has been one of the
most challenging yet rewarding experiences of his career. Effectively
managing his team, communicating with the board and working with
the residents is what challenges him every day and motivates him to
do the best for the Grand Haven community.  Please see John’s
resume on page 38.

John Lucansky
General Manager

Tiffani is a dedicated Restaurant Manager with 17 years of experience
in the restaurant industry and 12 years with Vesta. Her career began as
a line cook, where she developed a deep appreciation for kitchen
operations and the fast-paced world of hospitality. Through hard
work, leadership, and a passion for growth, she progressed to Kitchen
Manager, then Front of House Manager, and now serves as the
Restaurant Manager.

Tiffani brings a well-rounded understanding of both front and back-
of-house operations, allowing her to lead her team with confidence,
empathy, and efficiency. She is known for her hands-on approach,
strong work ethic, and commitment to delivering an exceptional
dining experience for every guest.

With nearly two decades in the industry, Tiffani continues to lead by
example, fostering a positive team environment and maintaining high
standards of service and quality every day.  Please see Tiffani’s
resume on page 40.

Tiffani Heffner
Restaurant Manager/Manager on Duty

Page 53



GRAND HAVEN’S
TEAM

Having lived in Palm Coast for almost five years, Heidi started working
for Vesta Property Services at Grand Haven in late December 2022 as
an administrative assistant in the Amenity Office.  As a former US Army
wife living in many different places, she has over 38 years of customer
service, office management, client services and event planning
experience with different companies.  Her skills include managing
schedules, handling confidential information, coordinating meetings
and social events, improving administrative processes to boost
efficiency and handling client support, issues and concerns.

Heidi Black
Lifestyle Director

Stephen Winston
Head Chef
Chef Stephen is a dedicated culinary professional with over a decade
of experience in the food and beverage industry. Beginning his career
as a line cook at Joseph's Italian cuisine, he quickly developed a
passion for fresh ingredients, flavor balance, and authentic culinary
techniques. Since 2008, he has managed Waterside Café, overseeing
daily operations, menu development, and staff leadership.

Travis L Sechman
Lead Facilitator/CPO
Travis has been a resident of Palm Coast, Florida for 23 years and  
started working for Vesta Property Services in 2008. He took a year off
in 2012 and came back to the company in September 2013. He is a
highly dedicated, detailed and organized person, and enjoys
interacting with the residents on a regular basis.  Travis currently does
the scheduling for the facilitators, orders supplies, and maintains the
all pools at both of our locations as Grand Haven’s Head Certified Pool
Operator. One of our hardest working employees, Travis also does the
maintenance on the tennis, pickleball, and bocce courts.

Brittani has been in the Palm Coast area for 22 years, starting with
Vesta in 2023. She is a highly organized and detail-oriented Office
Manager with 12 years of experience supporting executives, managing
office operations, and ensuring seamless administrative workflows.
Her strong skills in communication, problem solving and use of
technology make her a valuable team member at Grand Haven and
she is an important part of keeping our operations running smoothly. 

Brittani Thomas
Office Manager

Page 54



Jay brings over 30 years of management experience from diverse
private and public sectors. Joining Vesta in 2015, he served on a CDD
Board for 8 years and has been on an HOA board since 2018. A Navy
Veteran and cancer survivor, Jay now oversees and supports our
North Florida Region, consisting of 200+ communities.  In his leisure
time, Jay finds joy in family, church activities, swimming, kayaking,
biking, and downhill skiing.

Jay King
Regional President

Jason Davidson
Regional General Manager

Jason brings over 15 years of experience in Amenity Operations and
Facility Maintenance, with diverse roles in Community Management.
With a background as the Facilities Director at Julington Creek
Planation for 9 years and General Manager at RiverTown for 7 years,
he is known as one of Vesta's most adaptable team members.
Jason's wide-ranging skills cover overseeing community events,
managing on-site restaurant operations, enhancing guest services,
fitness facilities, and overall community upkeep. He has played key
roles in developing communities like RiverTown and WaterSong,
shaping many of Vesta's current Standard Operating Procedures,
Policies, and Protocols. Jason's dedication to community
management is reinforced by his family – his wife, two children, and
their beloved bulldog!  Jason is also currently a District Manager in
training.

MANAGEMENT 
SUPPORT

Scott Smith

Scott Smith brings over 17 years of experience serving special districts
and communities across Florida. He joined Vesta in 2020 and was
promoted to Vice President of District Services in 2022, where he leads
and supports the District Services team statewide. Before joining Vesta,
Scott spent 12 years with a Tampa-based District Management firm,
serving in roles including District Manager, Onsite Amenity Manager,
and Association Manager. His background also includes management
roles in the hospitality industry with Universal Studios and The Florida
Aquarium.  Scott is actively involved in several industry associations
and is a proud graduate of the Leadership Tampa Bay Class of 2020.

Regional Vice President

Page 55



Ross brings over two decades of experience in events, programming,
and entertainment from reputable organizations such as MTV Networks,
Universal Studios, Sea World Orlando, and various top-ranked
entertainment and event companies on the East coast.

Joining Vesta in 2016 after a successful tenure as Lifestyle Director at
Julington Creek Plantation for a year, Ross was later promoted to a
Regional role by the end of 2017. He plays a key role in enhancing the
quality of programming, events, and marketing internally, contributing
significantly to the improvement of our Northeast Florida client-
communities year after year.

Ross Ruben
Regional Lifestyle Director

Sean, the Regional Aquatics Director for the North Florida area, boasts
over 17 years of experience in the Aquatics Industry. Collaborating with
various Premier Communities in the region, he became part of Vesta in
2013. Sean's role involves spearheading the development and execution
of Aquatics Programming across all our properties, encompassing
Lifeguarding Certification, CPR/AED/First-Aid Training, and Swim
Instruction. During the peak season, Sean oversees a team of over 200
lifeguards.

Sean Smith
Regional Aquatics Director

Dana Harden brings two decades of experience and a diverse
background in property management. She holds certificates in
accounting and office technology, previously working as a staff
accountant before joining Vesta. Dana specializes in supporting
Community Development Districts, with a solid understanding of
chapter 190. Joining Vesta in 2019, she became a LCAM the same year
and achieved her PCAM certification through the Community
Associations Institute. Dana was honored as the Community
Association Manager of the Year for 2023 by the Northeast Florida
chapter of CAI. She is also a US Army Veteran.

Dana Harden
Regional General Manager

MANAGEMENT 
SUPPORT

Page 56



Priscila brings 12 years of property management expertise in Jacksonville
and 15 years of accounting experience. She has a background in
property ownership and management, liaising with board members.
Priscila became part of Vesta in April 2017, where she played a crucial
role in supporting the Julington Creek Plantation CDD, a key account.
Additionally, she is responsible for preparing and submitting monthly
sales tax reports to the Florida Department of Revenue, ensuring current
licenses and certificates for the café, handling vendor applications,
managing client invoices, overseeing payroll, conducting Profit & Loss
analysis, and completing end-of-month reconciliations. 

Jacquelyn brings over 13 years of HR expertise, including recruitment,
compliance, talent management, payroll, and workforce planning. After
serving as a regional manager at Massage Envy for 8 years, overseeing
200 employees, she joined Vesta as an HR Assistant in 2017. Since May
2020, Jacquelyn has excelled in her role as an HR Business Partner. In this
capacity, she collaborates closely with senior operations leaders,
focusing on talent and performance management, retention, and
workforce planning. Jacquelyn also ensures high standards in employee
relations, policy implementation, HRIS support, and State and Federal HR
compliance, while regularly visiting all managed communities in NE FL.

MANAGEMENT 
SUPPORT

Regional Accountant
Priscila Gieselman

Charlotte Whitehead
Regional Administrator

Charlotte has been part of Vesta's NE FL flagship community, Julington
Creek Plantation, since 2013, taking on various roles. She began as a part-
time Administrative Assistant and has progressed to her current position
through dedication and hard work for her community and Vesta.

As the Regional Administrative Services Director, Charlotte leverages her
wealth of experience in customer service, accounting, and human
resources gained from years in the retail and hospitality industries. Being
a resident of Julington Creek, she brings an unmatched level of
commitment to serving the CDD, her community, and Vesta. During her
free time, Charlotte enjoys working out and spending time with her
family.

Jacquelyn Chau
Regional Human Resources Business Partner

Page 57



CORPORATE  
LEADERSHIP 

Chrissy was appointed Corporate Controller in June 2013 to oversee
the accounting functions and human resources administration for
Vesta Property Services. She previously served as Chief Financial
Officer for a multimillion-dollar healthcare provider operating in 14
states. With over 25 years of leadership experience in corporate
finance and accounting, Chrissy has developed accounting and
financial infrastructure for multiple start-up companies that include
accounting systems, compliance, and risk management, as well as
implementation of employee benefit plans, employee policies and
procedures, and training and organizational development.

Christine Richie
Chief Accounting Officer

Daniel Armstrong
Chief Financial Officer

Dan oversees the financial and administrative functions of Vesta's
corporate entity. His career has included the performance and
oversight of accounting, administrative services, and financial
reporting for a range of entities, from large corporations following SEC
requirements, to not-for-profit associations, clubs and trusts which
serve many of our clients, and special-purpose entities that provide
financing for purchasing related association facilities.

Dan started as a Florida CPA at Deloitte & Touche in 1993, specializing
in the audits of publicly traded and real estate clients. He joined Vesta
as Controller in 2001.

Chief Executive Officer

David has been the CEO of Vesta since 2020, overseeing the
company’s executive team and day-to-day operations. During the
past decade, he has been significantly responsible for Vesta’s strong
growth by spearheading our mergers-and-acquisitions and strategic
partnerships. As a result, Vesta has tripled in size during this period
and achieved widespread recognition as a leading, full-service
property management company in Florida. 

His career experience includes all aspects of real estate, both
commercial as well as residential. Prior to joining Vesta, David was
managing partner for a real estate finance, management, and
brokerage company serving institutional clients

David Surface

Page 58



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Vesta Property Services 7/17/2025

John Lucansky General Manager
Oversees entire

operation
Village
Center 100%

Tiffiani Heffner
Restaurant
 Manager

Oversees café
operations 100% 6 Years 16 Years

Travis L Sechman Lead Facilitator /
 Main CPO

Oversees pool operations, schedules
and trains facilitators, provides

backup help
100% 6 Years 15 Years

Village
Center
Village
Center
Village
Center
Village
Center

100%

100%

5 Years 32 Years

Brittani Thomas Office Assistant Administration 3 Years 3 Years

Heidi Black Lifestyle/Programs
Events, Marketing and

Programming 3 Years 20 Years

Stephen Winston Head Chef Oversees kitchen
Village
Center 100%

List the location of the Proposer’s office which would perform work for the District.
Street Address : 245 Riverside Ave #300
City  State  Zip Code  Jacksonville, FL 32202
Telephone  Fax no.  813-390-6553
1st Contact Name: Jay King  Title : President North Florida
2nd Contact Name: Scott Smith  Title: Vice President, North Florida

Officers and Supervisory Personnel – Please complete the pages that follow at the end of this Part
regarding the Proposer’s Officers and Supervisory Personnel, and attach resumes for any Supervisory
Personnel listed. 

7/10/2025

Jay King Regional President, North
Florida

Oversees all NE FL Amenity
Operations

Jacksonville, FL

Kyle Nelson Regional President, South
FL

Oversees all South FL Amenity
Operations

Jacksonville, FL

Jacksonville, FLGinger Anzalone Regional President, 
West FL

Oversees all West FL Amenity
Operations

Brian Kruppa

Page 59



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 60



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 61



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 62



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 63



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 64



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 65



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 66



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 67



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 68



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 69



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 70



KEY 
PERSONNEL

Page 71



Our Team Members throughout Vesta are absolutely critical to our success in
serving our customers, so it is essential that we invest in them. Our strong local
presence provides our area team many opportunities for development and
advancement, which helps us attract and retain the best talent. 

Vesta employs customized, onsite operational training; supports our team to
obtain specialized certifications; and provides Vesta-specific Customer Service
Training to "set them up for success". We further build upon that with networking
opportunities for managers at our pre-and-post season, all-manager meetings
and through "peer walks." 

We also provide timely feedback
through our semi-annual check-
ins, which evolved from previous
performance management reviews
to a less formal, more frequent and
empowering experience.

We solicit manager feedback via
annual surveys to ensure we are
fully engaging, empowering and
satisfying our onsite leadership
teams.

Most importantly, we actively foster
our culture based upon our Vesta
Core Values. One way we do this is
through our annual "Eagle Pride
Day".

Vesta University is our website-
based training resource that
provides third party vendor training
aids as well as internally created
Vesta-specific content developed
by our subject matter experts.  These
training aids vary from videos to
PowerPoint critical skill modules.

TEAM MEMBER
DEVELOPMENT

Page 72



We bring our General Managers, Amenity Managers and Lifestyle Directors together
twice a year before and after the peak season to conduct training, prep and debrief the
peak season and to network. We do the same with our Field Operations managers
annually.

Some of our recent agenda topics have
included the following:

Customer Service Training
Post Season Debriefs
Annual Manager Survey results and
action Items
Pre-Season Operational Initiatives
Lifestyle Initiatives
Team Building
Topical Breakouts
Operational Tools
Performance Management
Staffing Strategies
Financial Analysis
Training Development
Retention Strategies
Payroll Management and Reporting
Results of operational pilots
Team Member Check-Ins
Insurance
Checklist Management
OnBoarding
Townhall with CEO

As long-time, active residents of Bartram Springs we are writing this letter to
commend two of the girls who run the clubhouse and all the activities involved.
Jayne and Julie are exceptional and an asset to the community. They are always
welcoming and helpful to anyone who comes to the office, whether a long-time
resident or a potential resident. They have both gone above and beyond in
assisting with the year long Food Drive and the Christmas Toy Drive, which has
made both drives so successful. Our community is lucky to have these girls.

Marty and Mimi Kaufman, Northeast Florida CDD Residents

TEAM MEMBER
DEVELOPMENT



REFERENCES



Project Name/Location:  Rivers Edge CDD 1, 2, 3 ("RiverTown") / Saint
Johns, FL
Contact:  Mac McIntyre   Contact Phone:  (850) 496-5510
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 4,400 homes at build-out   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $1,331,000 (+ Cafe w/ $755K in annual sales) 
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management, Field Operations
Management, Facility Maintenance Services, turnkey Café Operation,
Lifeguard Staffing, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2015 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Fleming Island Platnation CDD/Clay County
Contact:  Mike Cella   Contact:  MCella@fipcommunity.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 2,400 homes 
Dollar Amount of Contract: $773,743
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management, Field Operations
Management, Facility Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs &
Events.
Dates Serviced:  June 2024 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Julington Creek Plantation CDD
Contact:  Michael Morton   Contact Phone:  856-392-2245
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 5,800 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $1,650,000 (+ Cafe w/ $185K in annual sales) 
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field 
Operations Management, Facility Maintenance Services, turnkey Café 
Operation, Lifeguard Staffing, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2017 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Marshall Creek CDD (“Palencia”)/St. Johns
County
Contact:  Howard Entman   Contact:  HentmanMD@gmail.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 2,000 homes 
Dollar Amount of Contract: $324,000
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management - General Manager
and Assistant General Manager
Dates Serviced:  June 2023 - Present

Has the Proposer performed work for a community development district or master planned
residential community in excess of 1500 development units previously?   Yes 

REFERENCES

Please provide the following information for each project that is similar to this project, and that you
are currently undertaking, or have undertaken, in the past five years.   Attach additional sheets if
necessary.

Page 75



REFERENCES

Project Name/Location:  Rivers Edge CDD 1, 2, 3 ("RiverTown") / Saint Johns, FL
Contact:  Mac McIntyre   Contact Phone:  (850) 496-5510
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 4,400 homes at build-out   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $1,331,000 (+ Cafe w/ $755K in annual sales) 
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management, Field Operations Management, Facility Maintenance
Services, turnkey Café Operation, Lifeguard Staffing, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2015 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Fleming Island Platnation CDD/Clay County
Contact:  Mike Cella   Contact:  MCella@fipcommunity.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 2,400 homes 
Dollar Amount of Contract: $773,743
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management, Field Operations Management, Facility Maintenance
Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  June 2024 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Julington Creek Plantation CDD/St. Johns FL
Contact:  Michael Morton   Contact Phone:  856-392-2245
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 5,800 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $1,650,000 (+ Cafe w/ $185K in annual sales) 
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field 
Operations Management, Facility Maintenance Services, turnkey Café 
Operation, Lifeguard Staffing, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2017 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Marshall Creek CDD (“Palencia”)/St. Johns County
Contact:  Howard Entman   Contact:  HentmanMD@gmail.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 2,000 homes 
Dollar Amount of Contract: $324,000
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management - General Manager and Assistant General Manager
Dates Serviced:  June 2023 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Southhaven CDD (“Markland”)/St. Johns FL
Contact:  Richard Fetter   Contact Phone:  Dfetter172cdd@yahoo.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 386 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $170,679
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field 
Operations Management, Facility Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2015 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Brandy Creek CDD (“Johns Creek”)/St. Johns FL
Contact:  Meredith Payne   Contact: mercey1065@gmail.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 600 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $203,825
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field 
Operations Management, Facility Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2015 - Present

Within the last five years, has the Proposer provided a full range of amenity services for at least
three community development districts with an annual general fund budget of over $500,000?
Yes 

Page 76



REFERENCES
Project Name/Location:  Cross Creek North CDD/Clay County
Contact:  Robert Porter   Contact: rsporter@drhorton.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 1112 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $378,973
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2022 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Cypress Bluff CDD (“ETown”) /Duval County
Contact:  Joe Muhl Contact:  joemuhl@parcgroup.net
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 1400 homes   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $265,538
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field  Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2020 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Wynnfield Lakes CDD/Duval County
Contact:  Dr. Kristi Sweeny Contact: Kristi.sweeney@unf.edu
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 372 homes (built-out)   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $167,170
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field  Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2020 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Tisons Landing CDD (“Yellowbluff”) /Duval County
Contact:  Brandon Kirsch Contact:  cddbrandonk@gmail.com
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 680 homes   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $215,381
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field  Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2018 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Parkland Preserve CDD /St. Johns County
Contact:  Alfred Myslicki Contact:  HERE
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 357 homes   
Dollar Amount of Contract: $99,158
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field  Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2023 - Present

Project Name/Location:  Beach CDD (“Tamaya”) /Duval  County
Contact:  Elena Korsakova  Contact:  boardmember1@beachcdd.org
Project Type/Description:  CDD of 1000 homes  (Built Out)  
Dollar Amount of Contract: $407,769
Scope of Services for Project:  Amenity Management & Staffing, Field  Operations Management, Facility
Maintenance Services, and Lifestyle Programs & Events.
Dates Serviced:  2021 - Present

List the Proposer’s total annual dollar value of amenity center management and grounds maintenance
management completed for each of the last FIVE (5) years starting with the latest year and ending with the most
current year:

2020 = $24,555,369.76
2021  = $29,204,616.66
2022 = $30,720,024.57
2023 = $34,482,441.32
2024 = $38,563,987.84 Page 77

https://www.parklandpreservecdd.org/contact-form?recipient=10


COST



PRICING
General Management, Event Staffing, Pool Maintenance and Revenue Sharing

Who will perform these services?
Staff member(s) already present at the facilities fulfilling other duties. List positions; Submit Staff Information
Form for each: Please see pages, 53, 54, and 60 - 71 for descriptions, bios, and resumes.

Narrative approach to providing the General Management and Pool Maintenance services (describe how the
minimum services will be provided and describe any additional services included in the above pricing):

 Please see pages 15, and 22 - 36.

Page 79



PRICING
Café Management

Who will perform these services?
Staff member(s) already present at the facilities fulfilling other duties. List positions; Submit Staff Information
Form for each: Please see pages, 53, 54, and 60 - 71 for descriptions, bios, and resumes.

Narrative approach to providing the General Management and Pool Maintenance services (describe how the
minimum services will be provided and describe any additional services included in the above pricing):

 Please see pages 6 - 14.



PROPOSAL
SUMMARY

NAME OF PROPOSER COMPANY: Vesta Property Services
NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING THIS BID: Jay King
EMAIL: JKing@vestapropertyservices.com

In accordance with the Request for Proposals for Amenity Management Services, the person completing
this proposal on behalf of Proposer agrees to provide all services as described in the detailed Scope and/or
Specifications if awarded a contract hereunder. Proposer acknowledges that the contract with the
successful proposer is anticipated to start October 1, 2025. All proposals shall be in accordance with the
Project RFP.

Page 81



PROPOSAL
SUMMARY

Continued from previous page.

Page 82



Pricing Explanation: “Fixed Rate” vs “Cost Plus” Comparison

PRICING
EXPLANATION

Page 83



PRICING
EXPLANATION



What is the "Plus"?

The “plus” is a multiplier we use to factor in all other costs not on the Labor Allocation Detail Report (LADR) to ensure we cover
all other expenses (noted below) and make a profit. The multiplier will be tailored to each account and vary from contract to
contract depending on our costs, size of the account (volume discount), other sources of revenue (programming, café, etc.),
etc. The plus multiplier covers everything the contract and or operations require Vesta to pay for that is not billable to the
District such as:

Smart phones
Training materials
Vesta logo uniforms
Computers/tablets/IT not billable
Offsite employee travel that is not billable
Liability Insurance
All costs associated with Regional Support
All costs associated with Corporate Support
Our Profit

Wages
Regular
Onboarding
Holiday
Incentive
Back Pay
Overtime
Vacation 
Retro Pay
Fitness Club
Miscellaneous
Sick
Floating Holiday
Swim Class
Holiday Work

Non-Wage Benefits
Basic ADD
Basic Life
Medical Me

Taxes & WC
FUTA
Medicare
Social Sec.
FL SUI
Worker’s Comp

Cost-Plus Pricing Model

We are proposing to bill based on actual cost of wages and benefits (The Cost) using reporting from our third party
payroll processor (Paycom) and then apply a multiplier (the Plus) to cover non-payroll expenses such as onsite non-
billable items (smart phones, training, materials, uniforms, etc.), insurance, regional and corporate support and a profit.
The multiplier is set at fixed 1.21.  So, for every $1.00 in employee wages and benefits incurred, Vesta charges $1.233.  81%
of every dollar paid to Vesta goes directly to onsite employee compensation and benefits.

Advantages

1.  Creates transparency.  The District knows what compensation flows directly to onsite personnel.
2. This eliminates the inefficiencies created by a multi-year fixed rate contract where uncertainty increases over

time and vendor’s need to increase their margins to offset it resulting in an inevitably winner and loser.  If the vendor
does not accurately project future labor costs, they can lose money and conversely if the vendor overestimates
costs, then they will profit at the expense of the District. Neither scenario is necessarily good for long-term trust and
partnership.

3. The District only pays for what it actually gets.  If a position is gapped, then there are no wages to bill.  There is no
need to negotiate refunds or adjustments.

4. Vesta is still accountable to keep the District’s on budget and will estimate annual expenses for our services
during the annual budget process.

5. Hours, levels of services, and/or scope can be easily adjusted by the Board without any need for reworking the
contract to accommodate preferences or in response to economic pressures.  This arrangement provides flexibility
to tweak costs throughout the year to hit a desired target.

6. When there is a vacancy, multiple candidates for a position at different compensation levels can be considered
with the District only being billed for costs actually incurred.  Someone with less experience could save the District
money whereas a more experienced candidate might cost more but provide greater overall value.  There is no
incentive for the vendor to choose a less expensive option to save against a fixed reimbursement rate.

PRICING
INFORMATION

Page 85



Process for Cost-Plus Monthly Billing

We will provide Monthly Reporting to compare our actual billing to your budget. • If our
onsite, billable labor is less expensive then we estimated as part of your annual budget
process, then these realized savings would go to the District (not Vesta.) • If our onsite,
billable labor is trending to be more expensive then estimated, we can partner with you
regarding ways to reduce staffing costs proactively, to come in on-budget (or as
directed by the Board.)

Below is an example of the Monthly Reporting we provide as part of our manager’s report
for Heritage Landing CDD:

PRICING
INFORMATION

We are writing to express our sincere appreciation of the outstanding work of your team.Your
dedication, professionalism and commitment to excellence in serving our community has enhanced
our experience of living in Bartram Springs. We have been homeowners here since 2005 and our
daughter Misha grew up being part of the Swim Team through the years she was in middle and high
school. We have actively enjoyed using the club house for various family functions including her sweet
16th party, graduation party and her bridal shower as well this year. We have been regularly using
much of the amenities through the years and more so now in our retirement years. 

We have come to appreciate what you all do through the whole year in maintaining them. Be it
communal spaces, organizing engaging events to different age groups, seasonal festivities,
maintaining clean and safe spaces for enjoying the activities from regular Friday food trucks, monthly
family movie nights, seasonal activities like Polar dips, spring garage sales, food drives and countless
other activities you all organize and execute so well being proactive to needs and demands of the
community. I am aware of how demanding we homeowners can be and to please everybody is not a
small task. Your team's efficiency, attention to detail, and friendly demeanor makes interacting with all
of them a pleasure.

The approach of going above and beyond in order to ensure residents feel heard and valued by your
team enhances our harmonious living experience we enjoy very much. We want to thank you all for
the hard work and dedication you all have shown while you do your jobs. You all make a difference in
our lives. We whole heartedly commend your work and your team's work. 

Madan and Uma Mohan, Northeast Florida CDD Residents



ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL
FORMS, AFFIDAVITS AND

INSURANCE



Company Information
Proposer Name  Vesta Property Services, Inc.
Street Address  245 Riverside Avenue #300
P. O. Box (if any)  
City  State  Zip Code  Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Telephone (904) 355-1831            Fax no. (904) 355-1832  
1st Contact Name Jay King          Title  Regional Vice President
2nd Contact Name Ginger Anzalone   Title  Regional President

Parent Company Name (if any)  PMG Holdings
Street Address  5401 N. Central Expressway #290
P. O. Box (if any)  
City Dallas            State TX        Zip Code  75205
Telephone  (214) 272-4074     Fax no.  (214) 751-2397
1st Contact Name Jose B. Maldonado     Title  Treasurer
2nd Contact Name Brian Kruppa          Title  Secretary

Company Standing:

Proposer’s Corporate Form:  Corporation
(e.g., individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, etc.) 
In what State was the Proposer organized?  Florida     Date  November 12, 1995
Is the Proposer in good standing with that State? Yes  _X_ No  

Is the Proposer registered with the State of Florida, Division of Corporations and authorized to do
business in Florida? Yes   X    Charter No. P95000090161
   If no, please explain  

What are the Proposer’s current insurance limits?
General Liability                    $2,000,000 
Automobile Liability               $5,000,000
Workers Compensation    $1,000,000
Expiration Date                           08/01/2026

Licensure
Please list all applicable state and federal licenses, and state whether such licenses are presently in
good standing:
 

Type of registration: Community Association Management Firm License
License No. #CAM26311        Expiration Date:  09/30/2026
Qualifying Individual: Lisa Ann Manzione     Title: CAM / Regional President
Vesta is licensed under the provisions of Chapter 468, Florida Statutes (#CAB3970; exp.
09/30/2025) with the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulations, as well as
the Division of Real Estate (#CQ1036045; exp. 03/31/2027).

Minimum Qualifications: The Proposer has satisfied the following minimum qualifications
(initial each):
________authorized to do business in Florida, and hold all required state and federal licenses,

________has at least five (5) years’ experience providing a full range of amenity services to at
least three community development districts with an annual general fund budget of over $500,000;
and

________attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.

Proposal FormsGENERAL PROPOSER
INFORMATION

Page 88



Has the Proposer, or any of its principals or supervisory personnel (e.g., owner, officer, or
supervisor, etc.), been terminated for cause from any amenity center management and/or
grounds maintenance management contract within the past 3 years? Yes __X___ No _____
For each such incident, please provide the following information (attach additional sheets as
needed):

Project Name/Location: Harbor Bay CDD (“MiraBay")/ Apollo Beach, FL
Contact: Daniel Leventry Contact Phone: (813) 995-5669 
Project Type/Description: CDD of 1,300 homes (almost built-out) 
Dollar Amount of Contract: $750,000 
Scope of Services for Project: Amenity Management, Field Operations 
Management, Facilities Maintenance Services, Cafe Operations, and 
Lifestyle Programs.
Dates Serviced: December, 2019 – Present

Project Name: Triple Creek CDD / Location: Riverview, Florida
Contact: Alex Garces (Chair) Email: boardmember5@triplecreekcdd.com
Project Type: Planned-community of 1,200+ homes 
Scope of Services: Amenity Mgt., Maintenance Services, Lifestyle Programs
Contract Value: $110,000+
Dates Serviced: 2021 – Present

Project Name: Solterra CDD/Location: Davenport, Florida
Contact: Brian Meert (Chair) Email: seat3@solterraresortcdd.com
Project Type: Community of 1129 homes (mostly vacation homes)
Scope of Services: Amenity Mgt., Maintenance Services, Lifestyle Programs, District Management
Dates Serviced: 2021 - 2025

Project Name: Villages of Westport/Location: Jacksonville, Florida
Contact:  Yashekia Scarlett (Chair) Email: shekiaamp@yahoo.com
Project Type: Master Planned Community of 1850 homes
Scope of Services:  Field Ops and Maintenance
Dates Serviced:  2021 - 2025

Subcontractors – Does the Proposer intend to use any subcontractors in connection with the work? Yes    
No X  

Security Measures - Please describe any background checks, drug tests or other security
measures that were taken with respect to the hiring and retention of the Proposer’s personnel
who will be involved with this project, and provide proof thereof to the extent permitted by law:

Vesta runs a comprehensive state and federal background check on all new hires prior to
final onboarding through our third-party provider, Screening One. Additionally, all new hires
are required to successfully complete a 7-panel drug test prior to Day 1. Finally, we participate
in all federal and state mandated I9 and E-Verify requirements to ensure work
authorization/eligibility meets compliance standards. 

Confirm Compliance with the Youth Guidelines attached to the form of agreement provided
herein and provide any clarification or additional screening or training you do regarding
the same by attaching a separate sheet. 

Vesta confirms the compliance with the Youth Guidelines.

ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL
INFORMATION

Page 89

mailto:shekiaamp@yahoo.com


Has the Proposer been cited by OSHA for any job site or company office/shop safety
violations in the past five years?   Yes        No   X    

Has the Proposer experienced any worker injuries resulting in a worker losing more than
ten (10) working days as a result of the injury in the past five years? Yes        No   X  

Please state whether or not the Proposer or any of its affiliates are presently barred or
suspended from bidding or contracting on any state, local, or federal contracts? Yes__   
No  X  

List any and all governmental enforcement actions (e.g., any action taken to impose
fines or penalties, licensure issues, permit violations, consent orders, etc.) taken against
the Proposer or its principals, or relating to the work of the Proposer or its principals, in
the last five (5) years. Please describe the nature of the action, the Proposer’s role in the
action, and the status and/or resolution of the action.    None

List any and all litigation to which the Proposer or its principals have been a party in the
last five (5) years.  Please describe the nature of the litigation, the Proposer’s role in the
litigation, and the status and/or resolution of the litigation.

At our “Five Towns” managed community in the St. Petersburg area, a resident alleged a
type of “slip-and-fall,” supposedly resulting from an insect sting occurring on the club
premises/facilities that we maintain. The claim was dismissed.

A former employee at our Kings Point Sun City Center property alleged wrongful
termination in lieu of receiving severance pay (contrary to our standard employment
practice.) The claim was dismissed.

A former Vesta employee alleged age-discrimination as the reason for his or her
termination at our Villages of Bloomingdale contact in Riverview. The claim was settled (for
a modest sum) out of court on May 21, 2021

The majority of litigation we are involved with are handled by Association insurance as
required by our agreements since Vesta is frequently added to litigation when it is not
responsible for the claims made.

ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL
INFORMATION

Page 90



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 91



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 92



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 93



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 94



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 95



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 96



SIGNED
AFFIDAVITS

Page 97



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 98



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 99



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 100



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 101



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 102



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 103



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 104



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 105



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 106



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 107



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 108



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 109



CERTIFICATES OF
INSURANCE

Page 110



245 Riverside Ave. #300 
Jacksonville, FL 32202

Phone: 877-988-3782
 Contact@VestaPropertyServices.com

Contact Us



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 



On October 7, 2025, the Palm Coast City Council approved
Ordinance 2025-18, amending Chapter 42, Article I of the City’s
Code of Ordinances by creating Section 42-7, “Use and
Operation of Electric Bicycles.” The new section establishes
clear, consistent rules for how electric-powered bicycles can be
used and operated within the city. 

City Council first reviewed the proposed ordinance during a
workshop on September 9, 2025. Revisions were made to clarify
definitions, strengthen enforcement provisions, and refine age
restrictions. A second review took place during the September 16
business meeting, after which additional edits were
incorporated. The final version was brought forward and
adopted by a 4–1 vote at the October 7, 2025, business meeting

Palm Coast City
Council Adopts
Ordinance Regulating
E-Bike Use to Enhance
Public Safety
Tuesday, October 21, 2025

On October 7, 2025, the Palm Coast City Council approved
Ordinance 2025-18, amending Chapter 42, Article I of the
City’s Code of Ordinances by creating Section 42-7, “Use
and Operation of Electric Bicycles.” The new section
establishes clear, consistent rules for how bicycles and
electric-powered cycles can be used and operated within
the city. 

Post

Menu 

Share 7



10/30/25, 11:31 AM Palm Coast City Council Adopts Ordinance Regulating E-Bike Use to Enhance Public Safety | Palm Coast Connect

https://www.palmcoast.gov/newsroom/home/details/ebike-ordinance 2/4

https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?hashtags=PalmCoast&original_referer=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2F&ref_src=twsrc%5Etfw%7Ctwcamp%5Ebuttonembed%7Ctwterm%5Eshare%7Ctwgr%5E&related=twitterapi%2Ctwitter&text=Palm%20Coast%20City%20Council%20Adopts%20Ordinance%20Regulating%20E-Bike%20Use%20to%20Enhance%20Public%20Safety&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&via=palmcoastgov
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?kid_directed_site=0&sdk=joey&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.palmcoast.gov%2Fnewsroom%2Fhome%2Fdetails%2Febike-ordinance%3Fslug%3Debike-ordinance&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button


after multiple workshops, revisions, and opportunities for public
input.

The ordinance sets clear rules for e-bike use in Palm Coast to
address growing safety concerns on roads, sidewalks, and
shared paths. It follows Florida law by referencing the state’s
definition of an electric bicycle, which includes pedal-assisted
bicycles equipped with an electric motor and categorized by
speed capability. The ordinance prohibits the operation of
modified e-bikes that exceed state-defined limits on city streets,
sidewalks, or paths.

To enhance safety, the ordinance establishes a minimum age
requirement—no person under the age of 11 may operate an
electric bicycle on any city street, sidewalk, or path. Riders of all
ages must comply with traffic regulations, yield to pedestrians,
and provide an audible signal when overtaking.

All e-bike riders are required to carry a government-issued
photo identification and present it to law enforcement upon
request. Examples of acceptable identification include a driver's
license, passport, military ID, or school ID. 

Violations of the ordinance may result in penalties as provided
under Section 1-11 of the City Code, which allows fines of up to
$100 per offense. Law enforcement officers are authorized to
impound e-bikes operated in violation of the ordinance.

This measure is designed to improve safety for all users of city
streets and pathways by setting clear expectations for e-bike
operation while maintaining consistency with state law.
Ordinance 2025-18 takes effect immediately, and residents are
encouraged to review the new regulations in full to ensure
compliance. View the full ordinance by clicking here.

Stay informed with the latest news and information from the City of
Palm Coast by following us on Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, YouTube,
and LinkedIn. You can sign up for weekly updates by
visiting www.palmcoastgov.com/government/city-manager/week-
in-review

The Authors



10/30/25, 11:31 AM Palm Coast City Council Adopts Ordinance Regulating E-Bike Use to Enhance Public Safety | Palm Coast Connect

https://www.palmcoast.gov/newsroom/home/details/ebike-ordinance 3/4

https://copc-strapi-production.s3.amazonaws.com/Palm_Coast_Ordinance_2025_18_USE_AND_OPERATION_OF_ELECTRIC_BICYCLES_10_7_2025_e667167a85.pdf
https://www.facebook.com/PalmCoastGov
https://www.instagram.com/palmcoastgov/
https://twitter.com/palmcoastgov
https://www.youtube.com/@PalmCoastFL
https://www.linkedin.com/company/city-of-palm-coast
https://www.palmcoastgov.com/government/city-manager/week-in-review
https://www.palmcoastgov.com/government/city-manager/week-in-review


Shannon Martin
Public Information Supervisor

City of Palm Coast
160 Lake Avenue

Palm Coast, FL 32164
386.986.2360

Monday-Friday 8am-5pm

Accessibility
Contacts
Employees
Emergency Preparedness
Privacy Policy
Report Fraud



10/30/25, 11:31 AM Palm Coast City Council Adopts Ordinance Regulating E-Bike Use to Enhance Public Safety | Palm Coast Connect

https://www.palmcoast.gov/newsroom/home/details/ebike-ordinance 4/4

tel:+13869862360
https://www.facebook.com/PalmCoastGov/
https://www.facebook.com/PalmCoastGov/
https://www.instagram.com/palmcoastgov/
https://www.instagram.com/palmcoastgov/
https://twitter.com/palmcoastgov
https://twitter.com/palmcoastgov
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCutMtNq3Rm4NzsRYtNMHSAg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCutMtNq3Rm4NzsRYtNMHSAg
https://www.palmcoast.gov/privacy-policy/accessibility
https://www.palmcoast.gov/newsroom/home/details/ebike-ordinance
https://www.palmcoast.gov/privacy-policy
https://secure.ethicspoint.com/domain/media/en/gui/58745/index.html
https://www.amazon.com/city-of-palm-coast-Coast/dp/B07SKG42H5
https://www.amazon.com/city-of-palm-coast-Coast/dp/B07SKG42H5


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 15 




	1. Cover Page - Regular Meeting
	2. Agenda
	3. EXHIBIT 01
	4. EXHIBIT 01 - Notice of November 6 Meeting - Run 10-30-25
	5. EXHIBIT 02
	6. EXHIBIT 02 - Staff Reports - Amenity Manager
	7. EXHIBIT 03
	8. EXHIBIT 03 - Staff Reports - FY 2026 Capital Project Plan Tracker - 10.29.25
	9. EXHIBIT 04
	10. EXHIBIT 04 - Staff Reports - OPERATIONS MANAGER'S REPORT - 10.29.25
	11. EXHIBIT 05
	13. EXHIBIT 06
	14. EXHIBIT 06 - Staff Reports - Matrix-Updated 10-30-2025
	15. EXHIBIT 07
	16. EXHIBIT 07 - Staff Reports - DM Action Item Status for Board-Updated 10-28-2025
	17. EXHIBIT 08
	18. EXHIBIT 08 - Staff Reports - Proposed Revised FY26 Workshop Dates
	19. EXHIBIT 09
	20. EXHIBIT 09 - Consent Agenda - September WS Mins.
	21. EXHIBIT 10
	23. EXHIBIT 11
	24. EXHIBIT 11 - Business Items - Amenity Management Proposal (Vesta)
	25. EXHIBIT 12
	27. EXHIBIT 13
	28. EXHIBIT 13 - Disc. Topics - City Council Ordinance Regulating E-Bike Use to Enhance Public Safety
	29. EXHIBIT 14
	31. EXHIBIT 15
	32. EXHIBIT 15 - Off-Site Tour



